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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE BANK

Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (the “Bank”) is a commercial joint stock
bank registered and incorporated in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam:.

The Bank was incorporated pursuant to Business License No. 0038/GP-NHNN issued by the
Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam (the “SBV") on 6 March 2018 which replaces Business License
No. 0040/NH-GP on 6 August 1993 and Business Registration Certificate No. 0100230800 issued by
the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 10 August 2018. The operating duration is 99
years since 6 August 1993,

The principal activities of the Bank are to mobilise short, medium and long-term deposits from
organisations and individuals, provide short, medium and long-term loans, conduct settlement and
cash services, make investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint-ventures and other companies,
make investments in bonds and deal in foreign exchange in accordance with applicable regulations
and provide other banking services as approved by the SBV.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the
date of these consolidaied financial statements are as follows:

Name Position

Mr. Ho Hung Anh Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Dang Quang The first Vice Chairman
Mr. Nguyen Thieu Quang Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Canh Son Vice Chairman

Mr. Do Tuan Anh Vice Chairman

Mr. Lee Boon Huat Member

Mr. Nguyen Doan Hung Independent Member

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at
the date of these consolidated financial statemente are as follows: :

Name o Position

Mr. Hoang Huy Trung Head of the Board of Supervisors and Member in charge
Mr. Mag Rec Soc Oec Romauch Hannes Member

Ms. Nguyen Thu Hien Member in charge

Ms. Bui Thi Hong Mai Member




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Management of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at
the date of these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Name Position

Mr. Nguyen Le Quoc Anh Chief Executwe Officer

Mr: Do Tuan Anh -~ Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Pham Quang Thang Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and Head of Compliance and Legal Division

Mr. Le Ba Dung Deputy Chief Executive Officer (from 7 January 2019)
and Head of Risk Management

Mr. Trinh Bang Group Chief Finance Officer (from 25 January 2018)

Ms. Tran Thi Minh Lan ~ Head of Strategy and Corporate Development

Mr. Chester Gorski Head of IT and Operations

Mr. Vu Minh Truong Head of Treasury and Financial Markets

Ns. Phan Thi Thanh Binh Head of Wholesales Banking (from 23 April 2018)
Transformation Director — Wholesales Banking (to 22 April 2018)

Ms. Nguyen Huong Giang Head of Transaction Banking

Mr. Vishal Shah Head of Business Banking (from 2 March 2018)

Mr. Phung Quang Hung Head of Sales and Distribution

Ms. Le Thi Bich Phuocng Head of Personal Financial Services

Ms. Pham Vu Minh Dan Head of Human Resources

Ms. Nguyen Thi Van Anh Head of Marketing Division

Mr. Chung Ba Phuong Head of insurance Division

Mr. Ashish Sharma Transformation Director — Transformation Office

Mr. Phan Thanh Son Transformation Director — Transaction Banking

Mr. De Leeuw Van Weenen Transformation Director — Human Resources

Alexander Ilwan Paul {from 6 August 2018)

Mr. Chan Jonathan Chung Ming Transformation Director — Personal Financial Services
(to 31 August 2018)

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

LSS

NON -

The legal representative of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the date of these

- consglidated financial statements is Mr. Flo FHung Anh,-the-Chairman. -

Mr. Nguyen Le Quoc Anh is authorised by Mr. Ho Hung Anh to sign operations management related
reports and documents, which include the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 under Decision No. 0312/UQ-HDQT dated 25 February 2016.
AUDITOR

The audltor of the Bank 1s Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (the “Bank”)
is pleased to present its report and the consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018,

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management of the Bank is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Bank
and its subsidiaries and of the consolidated results of their operations, their consolidated changes in
equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Management is required to:

b select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
= make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

P prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Bank and its subsidiaries will continue its business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its
subsidiaries and ensuring that the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It
is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated
linancial slatements give a true and falr view of the consolldated financlal position of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and of the consolidated results of their operations, their
consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

s Le Quoc Anh
Chief Executive Officer

15 -03- 2019

Hanoi, Vietnam
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Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited  Tel: +84 24 3831 5100
ath Floor, CornerStone Building  Fax: +84 24 3831 5090
16 Phan Chu Trinh Street ey.com

Hoan Kiem Disirict

Hanoi, S5.R. of Vietnam

Reference: 60899747/20303658-IFRS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The Shareholders of
Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint
Stock Bank (the "Bank™ and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018, their
consolidated financial performance, their consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {(ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank and its subsidiaries in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Beoard for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethicai requirements that are relevant io our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Vietnam, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

‘Areas of focus B

- | How our audit addressed the risk factors -

Expected credit losses of loans and advances
to customers and debt instruments not carried
at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2018, loans and advances to
customers and debt instruments not carried at fair

Our audit procedures included understanding and
testing of the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over the following:

» the origination, approval and monitering;

& the ongoing internal credit quality assessments;

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Areas of focus - - -

| How qu}:auditladdressed:-the'_risk‘féc'f&r'é '

value through profit and loss contributed
approximately 78% to the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ total assets. The Bank's loan portfolio
consists of corporate loans and retail loans, while
debt instruments not carried at fair value through
profit and loss comprises of Government bonds,
bonds issued by local credit institutions and bonds
issued by local economic entities.

The allowance for impairment of loans to
customers is considered to be a matter of
significance as it requires the application of
judgment and use of subjective assumptions by
management, In addition, the adoption of IFRS 9
has fundamentally changed the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ assessment for impairment of loans
and debt instruments not carried at fair value
through profit and loss by replacing IAS 39's
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking
expected credit loss ("ECL"} approach.

The measurement of ECL requires the application
of significant judgement and increased complexity
which include the identification of on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet credit exposures with
significant  deterioration in  credit quality,
assumptions used in the ECL models (for
exposures assessed individually or collectively)
such as the expected future cash flows, forward-
looking macroeconomic factors and probability-
weighted multiple scenarios.

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies
in Nofe 7.9, significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions in Notes 8.2 and the
disclosures of Joans and advances to customers
and debt instruments not carried at fair value
through profit orloss in Notes 26.1, 26.2, 26.4, 26.5
and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

» the transfer criteria (for the three stages of credit
exposures under [FRS 9 in accordance with
credit quality), impairment measurement
methodologies, govermnance for development,
maintenance and validation of ECL models,
inputs, basis and assumptions used by the Bank
and its subsidiaries in staging the credit
exposures and calculating the ECL.

We performed the following substantive
procedures for impairment allowances of loans to
customers in response to the identified risk:

» For staging and identification of credit
exposures with significant deterioration in
credit quality, we assessed and tested the
appropriateness of the transfer criteria applied
by the Bank and its subsidiaries for different
types of credit exposures. We evaluated if the
transfer criteria were consistent with the Bank
and its subsidiaries’ credit risk management
practices.

¥ For the measurement of ECL, we assessed
and tested the reasonableness of the Bank
-and its subsidiaries’ ECL models, including
mode! input, model design and model
performance for significant portfolios. We
challenged whether historic experience is
representative of current circumslances and of
the recent losses experience incurred in the
portfolios and assessed the reasonableness of
forward-looking adjustments, macroeconomic
factor analysis and probability-weighted
multiple scenarios.

» We evaluated if changes in modelling
approaches, parameters and assumptions are
needed and if any changes made were
appropriate. We also assessed, tested and
monitored the sensitivity of the expected credit
loss provisions to changes in modelling
assumptions,

> We reconciled the ECL model input data back
to the source system and tested a sample of
input data to ensure the ECL model data are
accurately transferred from the source system.

» With respect to individually assessed ECL
which are mainly in relation to the impaired
financial assets in Stage 3, we reviewed and
tested a sample of loans, advances, financing
and investments to evaluate the timely
identification by the Bank and its subsidiaries
of exposures with significant deterioration in
credit quality or which have been impaired. For

A membper firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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“Areas of focus ... i

| How our audit addressed the risk factors

cases where impairment has been identified,
we assessed the Bank and its subsidiaries’
assumptions on the expected future cash
flows, including the value of realisable
collaterals based on available market
information and the multiple scenarios
considered. We also challenged the
assumptions and compared estimates to
external evidence where available.

» We also assessed whether the consolidated
financial statement disclosures are adeguate
and appropriately reflect the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ exposures to credit risk.

» We involved our credit modelling specialists
and IT specialists in the performance of these
procedures where their specific expertise was
required.

B We also re-computed management’s
calculation to assess the completeness and
accuracy of the Bank and its subsidiaries’
impairment allowances.

Valuation of financial assets classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) with a higher degree of estimation
uncertainty

The valuation of the Bank and its subsidiaries’
financial instruments was a key area of focus of our
audit due to the degree of complexity involved in
valuing certain instruments and the significance of

the judgments and estimates made by
management.

In particular, the determination of Level 3
valuations requires a higher degree of

management judgments as a result of the use of
significant unobservable inputs.

At 31 December 2018, 63% (VND 45,153 billion) of
the Bank and its subsidiaries’ total financial assets
that were carried at fair value were classified as
Level 3. The Level 3 instruments mainly comprised
of unlisted corporate bonds and a small amount
unlisted equity investment.

Refer to Notes 26.1 and 39a to the consolidated
financial statements for financial assets classified
as available-for-sale and Notes 26.2, 26.3 and 39a
fo the consolidated financial statements for
financial assets at FVOCI.

We evaluated the design of and tested the
operating effectiveness of the key controls over
the Bank and its subsidiaries’ purchase, selling
and recognition process of derivative instruments
and hinancial assets at FVOCL.

For those financial assets at FVOC! with
significant unobservable valuation inputs, we
critically assessed the valuation assumptions and
inputs used by management, and performed an
independent valuation on a sample basis. In
addition, we performed a variation analysis for
significant or unexpected fair value movements
over the year, We also challenged the
management classification of  financial
instruments to levels in the hierarchy, sensitivity
analysis presented in the consolidated financial
statements and assessment of other disclosures
to ensure the classification, analysis and
disclosures are reasonable and appropriate.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Glohal Limited
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank
and its subsidiaries' ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Bank and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsibie for overseeing the Bank and its subsidiaries' financiat
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial staiements
as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consclidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank and its subsidiaries' ability fo continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's repart to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Bank and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Bank and its
subsidiaries to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. '

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Dang Phaong Ha i
Deputy General Director
Audit Practising Registration Certificate No. 2400-2018-004-1

Hanoi, Vietnam

26 March 2019

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expenses

Nel interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Total operating income
Credit loss expense on financial assets

Net operating income

Personnel expenses

Operating lease expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Profit before tax

Current income tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Net profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (VND)

Prepared by:

y (A

Approved by:

2017

2018 {reclassified)

Notes VND million VND million
11 20,595,848 16,987,472
12 (10,023,472) (8,664,092)
10,572,376 8,323,380

4,799,247 4,715,883

(915,737) (556,782)

13 3,883,510 4,159,101
14 747,866 1,003,182
15 4,012,462 2,738,327
19,216,214 16,223,990

16 {1,410,703) (2,741,208)
17,805,511 13,482,785

17 {4,449,385) (2,656,411)
(461,748) {(441,778)

29 (169,180) {186,948)
30 (90,423) {94,193)
18 (2,167,795) (1,643,583)
(7,338,531) {5,022,913)

10,466,980 8,459,872

16 (2,186,2486) (1,664,8186)
20 {172,929) {118,630)
8,108,805 6,776,426

8,004,967 6,776,426

13,838 -

8,108,805 6,776,426

21 3,649 8,115

Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van
Chief Accountant

25 -03- 2019

Hanoi, Vietnam

TN/ uyen Le Quoc Anh
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Thai Ha Linh
Director of Accounting,
Financial Policy and Tax,
Finance and Planning Division



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will be reclassified to the
consolidated statement.of profit or loss
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net change in fair value

Changes in allowance for expected credit
losses

Reclassification to the statement of profit or loss
Income tax related to the above

Net gain on financial investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Financial investments available-for-sale
Net change in fair value
Recycling to the statement of profit or {oss

Income tax related to the above

Net gain on financial investments available-
for-sale

Total items that will be reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss

ltems that will not heé reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
Revaluation loss on equity instruments at

fair value through other comprehensive income
[ncome tax related to the above

Total iterns that will not be reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss

Other comprehensive gain for the year, net

Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Prepared by: Approved by:

Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van Ms. Thai Ha Linh

Chief Accountant

2.5 -03- 2019

Hanoi, Vietnam

Director of Accounting,
Financial Policy and Tax,
Finance and Planning Division

7,718,475

2018 2017

Notes VND million VND million
8,108,805 6,776,426

369,734 -

177,807 -

(1,029,829) -

20 96,438 -
(385,750} -

- 1,043,883

- (236,598)

20 - {161,457)
- 645,830

 (385,750) 645,830

(5,726) -

1,145 -

{4,580) -

7,718,475 7,422,256

7,704,637 7,422,256

13,838 -

7,422,266

“Nguyen Le Quoc Anh
Chief Executive Officer



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2018

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Notes VND miflion YND miffion
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 22 37,262,868 22,702,619
Due from other banks 23 11,671,923 14,282,783
Derivative financial assets 24 579,520 1,042,000
Financial assets held-for-trading 25.1 “ 7,173,992
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ 25.2 7.736,876 -
Financial investinenls avallable-for-sale 26.1 - 48,085,120
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 26.2 64,362,440 -
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 26.3 14,802 -
Loans and advances to customers 27 162,926,087 162,831,543
Financial investments held-to-maturity 26.4 - 5,910,687
Debt instruments at amortised cost 26,5 24 197,747 -
Other assets 28 5,252,856 4,858,351
Properly and equipment 29 6,081,346 3,352,051
Goodwill and other intangible assets 30 313,321 393,202
Deferred tax assets 20 250,469 190,151
TOTAL ASSETS 320,630,235 270,832,589
LIABILITIES
Due to the Government and the State Bank of
Vietnam 31 6,033,332 1,004,111
Due to other banks 32 35,525,290 45,522,205
Derivative financial liabilities 24 832,288 1,025,640
Deposits from customers 33 203,918,466 173,254,935
Other borrowed funds 34 993,469 915916
Debt instruments issued 35 13,359,551 17,798,040
Current tax liabilities 36 980,062 928,393
Other liabilities 37 7,962,488 3,202,472
Deferred tax liabilities 20 79,068 235,807
TOTAL LIABILITIES 269,684,014 243,887,519
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 34,965,822 11,855,307
Share premium 38.1 1,563,953 2,165,058
Traasury shares 38.1 (68,708} (4,044 ,547)
Retained earnings . 10,273,242 10,429,246.
Statutory reserves 38.2 3,867,372 6,156,454
Fair value reserve 232,694 583,552
Other reserves 27,903 -
Total equity attributable to the Bank 50,874,288 26,945,070
Total equity attributable {o hon-controlling
interest 71,933 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 50,946,221 26,945,070
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY 270,832,589

Prepared by: Approved by;

Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van Ms. Thai Ha Linh

Chief Accountant

25 -63- 2019

Hanoi, Vietnam

Director of Accounting,
Financial Policy and Tax,
Finance and Planning Division
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation expense of property and equipment
Amortisation expense of intangible assets

Credit loss expense con financial assets

Equity-settled share-based payment

Net cash flows from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities

Change in due from other banks

Change in derivative financial assets

Change in financial assets held-for-frading
Change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Change in loans and advances to customers

. Change in financial investments available-for-sale
Change in debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Change in equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Change in financial investments held-to-maturity
Change in debt instruments at amortised cost
Change in other assets

Change in due to the Government and the State Bank
of Vietnam

Change in due to other banks

Change in derivative financial liabilities

Change in deposite from customers

Change in other borrowed funds

Change in debt instruments issued

Change in other liabilities

Net change in operating assets and liabilities
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

14

2017

2018 {reclassified)

Notes VND million VND miltion
10,466,980 8,459,872

169,180 186,948

90,423 94,193

16 1,410,703 2,741,205
1,004,326 10,140

13,231,612 11,492,358

2,606,051 (1,327,096}

462,480 {543,482)

- 945,309

(562,884) -

(3,968,893) {19,557,157)

. - . (6,850,277)
{21,031,715) -

219,197 -

- {209,280)

(14,679,633) -
(2,331,682) (2,401,851)

5,029,221 {444,256)

(9,996,915) 20,374,050

{193,352) 511,359

30,663,631 (1,878,728)

77,553 326,030

(1,725,402) 7,416,434

4,623,133 610,263

{10,709,310) {3,028,682)

19 (2,140,758) (1,034,529)
381,544 7,429,147




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

' 2017
2018 {reclassified)
Notes VND million VND million
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property and eguipment (349,239) (134,407)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 6,008 5,078
Proceeds from liquidation of the subsidiary and
other long-term investments 915,560 355,192
Acquisitions of intangible assets {62,335) (41,408)
Net cash flows from investing activities 519,994 184,455
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of shares - 2,099,999
Proceeds from long-term debt instruments issued
qualified to classify as subordinated debts 310,000 2,708,164
Payments for long-term debt instruments issued
qualified to classify as subordinated debts (3,023,087) -
Proceeds from selling treasury shares 16,321,177 -
Payment for purchasing freasury shares - (4,043,249)
Increase in charter capital from capital contribution . _ _ _ N
by non-controlling shareholders 58,201 -
Net cash flows from financing activities 13,666,291 764,914
Net cash flows during the year 14,567,829 8,378,516
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 122,702,619 14,324,103
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 37,270,448 22,702,619
Operational cash flows from interest and
dividends
Interest received 19,627 569 17,451,628
Dividends received 15 275 334

Interest paid (8,154,083)

Prepared by: Approved by:
Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van Ms. Thai Ha Linh
Chief Accountant” Director of Accounting, = Chief Executive Officer

Financlal Pollcy and Tax,
_ Finance and Planning Division
25 -03- 2019 S o

Hanoi, Vietnam
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank (the “Bank”) is a commercial joint
stock bank registered and incorporated in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

Establishment and Operations

The Bank was incorporated pursuant to Business License No. 0038/GP-NI INN issued by the
Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam (the “SBV”) on 6 March 2018 which replaces Business
License No. 0040/NH-GP on 6 August 1993 and Business Registration Certificate No.
0100230800 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 10 August 2018.
The operating duration is 99 years since 6 August 1993.

The principal activities of the Bank are to mohilise short, medium and long-term deposits from
organisations and individuals, provide short, medium and long-term loans, conduct settlement
and cash services, make investments in subsidiaries, associate, joint-ventures and other
companies, make investments in bonds and deal in foreign exchange in accordance with
applicable regulations and other banking services as approved by the SBV.

Network

The Bank’s Head Office is located at 191 Ba Trieu, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi. As at 31
December 2018, the Bank has one (1) Head Office, two (2) representative offices, three
hundred and fourteen (314) transaction offices nationwide and three (3) subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank has three (3} subsidiaries as follows:

Busineés . % d#)ned by
No. Name Business license No. sector the Bank
1 Techcom Securitics 85/GPDC-UBCK dated 16 Securities 94.49999%

Joint Stock Company  October 2018 granted by the  aclivities
State Securities Commission

2 Vietnam 0102786255 dated 18 June Debt and 100%
Technological and 2008 granted by the Hanoi asset
Commercial Joint - - -Department of Planning-and - - management - -
Stock Bank — Asset Investment which was
Management amended for the 22 time on
Company Limited 30 Novermnber 2018

3 Techcom Capital 40/UBCK-GP dated 21 Fund 160%
Management October 2008 granted by the management
Company Limited State Securities Commission

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries have 9,757 employees (31 December
201/: 8,328 employees). '
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

BASIS FOR PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held-for-trading, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss ("“FVTPL"), financial investments available-for-sale ("AFS"), debt
and equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and
derivalive financial inslruments which have been imeaswed al falr value.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations (“IFRS") that
are efleclive for annual periods beglnning on or after 1 January 2018 as Issued and approved
by the International Accounting Standards Board.

PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank and its subsidiaries present its consolidated statement of financial position in order
of liquidity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to
having an unconditional legally enforceable right fo offset the recognised amounts without

being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the
following circumstances:

» The normal‘ course of business;
» The event of default; or

> The event of Insolvency or bankrupley of the Bank and its subsidiaries andfor its
counterparties.

BASIS FOR CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its

subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018, The Bank consolidates a subsidiary from the date of
control of subsidiary and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Control is achieved when the Bank is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. In case the Bank divests its equity interest in a subsidiary resulting in loss of
control over the subsidiary, the Bank only consolidates the financial result of the subsidiary
from the beginning of the year up to the date of the divestment without consolidating the net
assets of the subsidiary. Furthermore, the Bank makes adjustments of indirect impact of the
divestment fransactions on the consolidated cash flow statement.

When necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring

their accounting policies in line with the Bank's accounting policies. All intra-group assets,
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows are eliminated in full on consolidation.

17
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

6.1.

6.1.1.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND bISCLOSURES

In these consolidated financial statements, the Bank and its subsidiaries have applied IFRS
9, IFRS 7R and IFRS 15, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
for the first time. The Bank and its subsidiaries have not adopted early any other standards,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces |AS 39 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The adoption
of IFRS 9 resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amount previously
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. As permitted by the transitional
provisions of IFRS 9, the Bank and its subsidiaries elect not to restate comparative figures.
Any adjustments to the carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities at the date of
adoption were recognised directly in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and are disclosed
in Note 9. The accounting policies that relates io recogniiion and derecognition, classification
and measurement, and impairment of financial assets were amended to comply with IFRS 9
as set out from Note 7.2 to Note 7.9.

Changes to classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS @ requires all financial
assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of
the entity's business model for managing the assets and the instruments' contractual cash
flow characteristics whether it represents solely payment of principal and interest (“SPPI") on
the principal amount outstanding. The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets
(FVTPL, AFS, loans and receivables and held-to-maturity) have been replaced by:

» Debt instrumehts at amortised cost;‘

» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH), with gains
or losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition;

» Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to_profit or loss on
derecognition;

¥ Financial assets at FVTPL.

The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under [AS 39, except
for the treatment of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities
designated at FVTPL. Such movements are presented in other comprehensive income
("OCI”) with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, financial assets are classified based on the business model and their contractual
terms, as explained in Notes 7.3.1.1 and 7.3.1.2. The accounting for derivatives embedded in
financial liabliitles and In non-financlal host contracls has not changed. The Bank and its
subsidiaries’ accounting policies for embedded derivatives are set out in Note 7.3.2.1.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ classification of its financial assets and liabilities is explained

in Notes 7.2.4 and 7.3. The quantitative impact of applying IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is
digcloged in Note 8. . A

18
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

6.1.

6.1.2.

6.2.

6.3.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
IFRS 8 - Financial instruments (continued)
Changes to the impairment calculation

The adoplion of IFRS 9 has fundainentally changed lhe Bank and s subsldlaries' accounting
for loan loss impairments by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking
expected credit loss ("ECL") approach. IFRS 9 requires the Bank and its subsidiaries to record
an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together
with loan commitments, financial guarantee contracts and letters of credit. The allowance is
based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. If the financial asset meets
lhe definition of purchased or originated credit impaired (“POCI"), the allowance is calculated
based on the change in the ECLs over the life of the asset.

Details of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ impairment method are disclosed in Note 7.9.
IFRS 7R

To reflect the differences between IFRS 9 and |IAS 38, IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:
Disclosures was updated and the Bank and its subsidiaries have adopted it, together with
IFRS 9, for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Changes include
transition disclosures as shown in Note 9, detailed qualitative information about the ECL
calculations such as the assumptions and inputs used are set out in Note 41.2. Reconciliations
from opening to closing ECL allowances are presented in Notes 22, 23, 26.2, 26 5, 27.1, 28,
and 37.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and introduces new contract cost guidance. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects tha consideration which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 has immaterial impact on the
Bank and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.1.

7.1.1.

7.1.2,

7.2.

7.2.1.

7.2.2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Foreign currency franslation
Functional and presentational currency

Currency used in accounting of the Baiik and its subsidiaties Is Vietnam dong ("VND") and Is
rounded to the nearest VND million for presentation of consolidated financial statements. For
each entity in the group, the Bank and its subsidiaries determine the functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. The Bank and its subsidiaries use the direct method of consolidation.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot
rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

All transactions are recorded in original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency using exchange
rates ruling at the reporting date (Mote 45). Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are transiated into functional currency using exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

Financial instruments - Initial recognition
Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and
balances due to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the
Bank and its subsidiaries become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades - purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are transferred to the
customers’ account. The Bank and its subsidiaries recognise due to customer balances when
funds are transferred to the Bank and its subsidiaries. o

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual
terms and the business model for managing the instruments, as described in Notes 7.3.1.1
and 7.3.1.2. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to,
or subtracted from, this amount. Financial receivables are measured at the transaction price.

When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price, the Bank and its subsidiaries account for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described below.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.2,

7.2.3.

7.2.4.

7.3.

7.3.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments - initial recognition (continued)
Day 1 profit or loss

When the fransaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observabie in market
transactions, the Bank and its subsidiaries recognise the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based on models
for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

During the year, the Bank and its subsidiaries recognised Day 1 loss for preference loans to
its employees which have interest rate significantly lower than market rate in “Personnel
expenses”. The difference between the fair value of the loans (using discounted cash flow
method) and their principal is amortised along their committed working time or the life of the
relevant loans.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

From 1 January 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries classify all of its financial assets based
on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, measured
at either:

* Amortised cost, as explained in Note 7.3.1;

¢ FVOCI, as explained in Notes 7.3.4 and 7.3.5;

s« FVTPL, as explained in Notes 7.3.2 and 7.3.3."

The Bank and its subsidiaries classify and measure its derivative and trading portfolio at
FVTPL as explained in Notes 7.3.2 and 7.3.3. The Bank and its subsidiaries may designate

financial instruments at FVTPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement
or recognition inconsistencies.

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries classified its financial assets as loans

and receivables {amortised cost), FVTPL, available-for-sale or held-to- maturlty (amorhsed
- cost)-as explained-in Notes-7.3.1,-7.3.8 and-7.3.9. -

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTPL when they are held-for-trading and derivative instruments,

Financial assets and liabilities

Due from banks, loans and advances to customers and other financial investments at
amortised cost

Before 1 January 2018, due from bank and loans and advances to customers, included non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in an
active market, were other than those:

» that the Bank and its subsidiaries intended to sell lmmedlately orin the near term;

» that the Bank and its subsidiaries, upon initial recognition, de5|gnated as at FVTPL or as
available-for-sale;

» for which the Bank and ils subsidiaries may not recover substantially all of ils initial
investment, other than because of credit deferioration, which were designated as
available-for-sale.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.3.

7.3.1.

7.3.1.1.

7.3.1.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Due from banks, loans and advances to customers and other financial investments at
amortised cost (continued)

From 1 January 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries only measure due from banks, loans and
advances to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPPI.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
The SPPI! test

The Bank and its subsidiaries assess the contractual terms of financial assets to identify
whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example if there are
repayments of principal or amortisation-of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements "of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the
Bank and its subsidiaries apply judgment and consider relevant factors such as the currency
in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do
not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount cutstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL,

Business model assessment

The Bank and its subsidiaries determine its business model at the level that best reflects how
it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective, The Bank and its
subsidiaries’ business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a
higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» Business strategy for the portiolios;

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and repoited to the entity's key management personnel;

» The risks that affect the performance of the business maodel (and the financial assets held
within that business tnodel) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank
and its subsidiaries' assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios withoul laking
‘worst case’ or 'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Bank and its subsidiaries’ original expeclations, the
Bank and its subsidiaries do not change the classification of the remaining financial assots
held in that business model, but incorporate such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward,
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.3.

7.3.2.

7.3.2.1.

7.3.3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Derivatives recorded af fair value through profit or loss

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of lhe following
characteristics:

> Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit
rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial
variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e. the 'underlying');

» |t requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would
be required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response to changes
in market factors;

» ltis settled at a future date.

The Bank and its subsidiaries enter into derivative transactions with various counterparties.
These include interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps, cross currency interest rate swap,
forward foreign exchange contracts and options on inferest rates and foreign currencies.
Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-
derivative hiost ontract with the éfféct that somé of the cash flows of the combined instrument
vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all
of the cash flows that otherwise would be reqguired by the contract to be modified according
fo a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commaeodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the
case of s hon-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract. A derivative that s
attached to a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable independenily of that
instrument, ot has a different counterparty from that instrument, is not an embedded
derivative, but a separate financial instrument.

Under IAS 39, derivatives embedded in financial assets, liabilities and non-financial host
contracts, were treated as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if they met the
definition of a derivative {as defined above}, their economic characteristics and risks were not
closely related to those of the hest contract, and the host contract was not itself held-for-
trading or designated at FVTPL. The embedded derivatives separated from the host were
carried at fair value in the trading portfolio with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

From 1 January 2018, with the introduction of IFRS 9, the Bank and its subsidiaries account
in this way for derivatives embedded in financial liabilities and non-financial host contracts.
Financial assets are classified based on the business model and SPPI assessments as
outlined in Notes 7.3.1.1 and 7.3.1.2,

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL

The Bank and its subsidiaries classify financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading
when they have boon purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making through
lrading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together,
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading
assets and ligbilities are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in “Net frading income”. Interest and dividend
income or expense is recorded in "Nef trading income” according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established.
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7.3.

7.3.3.

7.3.4.

7.3.5.

7.3.6.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Included in this classification are debl securiies and equllles lhat have been acqulred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Debt instruments at FVOCI (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Bank and its subsidiaries apply the new category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments
measured at FVOCI when both of the following conditions are met:

« The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

* The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

These instruments largely comprise assets that had previously been classified as financial
investments available-for-sale under IAS 39. ' '

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income is recognised in profit
or loss as “Net interest income”. The ECL calculation for Debt instruments at FVOCI is
explained in Note 7.9.3 and recognised in “Credif loss expense on financial assets". On
derscognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised In OCI are reclassified from
OCI to profit or loss.

Equity instruments at FVOCI (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018)

Upon initial recognition, the Bank and its subsidiaries can elect to classify irrevocably some
of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of
Equity under 1AS 32 - Financial Instruments; Presentation and are not heid for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised in profit or loss as "Ofher operating income” when the right of the payment has
been established, except when the Bank and its subsidiaries benefit from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI.
Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

Debt instruments issued and other borrowed funds

Financial instruments issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries that are not held-for-trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are classified as liabilities under debt
instruments issued and other horrowed funds, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement resuits in the Bank and iis subsidiaries having an obligation either to deliver cash
or another financial asset to the holder, or fo satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash cr another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

After initial measurement, debt instruments issued and other borrowed funds are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR"). Amortised
cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that
are an Integral part of the EIR.

A compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is
scparated at tho issue date.
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7.3

7.3.6.

7.3.7.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Debt instruments issued and other borrowed funds (continued)

The Baiik issued a number of financial nstiuments with equily converslen. When establishing
the accounting treatment of these non-derivative instruments the Bank first establishes
whether the instrument is a compound instrument and classifies such instruments or
components separately as financial liabilities, financial assets, or equity instruments. The
Bank separately recognises the components of a financial instrument that: (a) creates a
financial liability for the Bank; and (b) grants an option to the holder of the instrument to
convert it into an equity instrument of the entity. Classification of the liability and equity
components of a convertible Instrument Is not revised as a result of a change in the likelihood
that a conversion option will be exercised, even when exercise of the option may appear to
have become economically advantageous to some holders. When allocating the initial
carrying amount of a compound financial instrument to its equity and liability components, the
equity component is assigned the residual amount after deducting from the entire fair value
of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component. Once the
Bank has determined the split between equity and liability, it further evaluates if the liability
component has embedded derivatives which would require separation. The Bank only
separates the embedded derivatives from the host contract and accounts for them as a
derivative when:

» The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;

» A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded denvattve would meet the
definition of a derivative of & derivative; or

» The hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss (i.e. a derivative that is embedded in a financial asset or
financlal liability at FVTPL is not separated).

Financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loanh eommitments
The Bank issues financial guarantees, |etters of credit and lcan commitments.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the consclidated financial statements (within
“Other liabilities") at fair value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Bank’s liability under each guarantes is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and — under IAS 39 — the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial
obligation arising as a result of the guarantee, or — under IFRS 9 — an ECL provision as set
out in Note. 37.1.1.

The premium received is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in "Net fee
and commission income" on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credit are commitments under which, over the
duration of the commitments, the Bank is required to provide a [oan with pre- spemfled terms
te the customer. Similar to fmanudl guaienlee contracts, under IAS 39, a provigsion was made
if they were an onerous contract but, from 1 January 2018, these contracts are in the scope
of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan
commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on
in the statement of financial position. The nominal values of these instruments together with
the corresponding ECLs are disclosed in Note 37.1.
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7.3.

7.3.8.

7.3.8.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)'
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Policy applicable before 1 Jan 2018)

Financial invesliments available-for-sale ("AFS”") include equily and debt secuiilies. Equily
investments classified as AFS are those which are neither classified as held-for-trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liguidity or in
respense to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, financial investment AFS are subsequently measured at fair value.

Unrealised gains and losses are recognised directly in equity (Other comprehensive income)
in the “Fair value ressrve”. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
“Other operating income”. Interest earned whilst holding financial investment available-for-
sale is reported as interest income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst helding financial
investment available-for-sale are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
"Other operating income” when the right of the payment has been established. The losses
arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in "Credit loss expense on financial assets” and removed from “Fair value
reserve”,

Held-to-maturity financial investments (Policy applicable before 1 Jan 2018)

Financial investments held-to-maturity (“HTM") are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturities, which the Bank and its subsidiaries have the
intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, financial investment held-
to-maturity is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
("EIR"} less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an inlegral parl of the EIR. The amorlisalion is
included in “Interest and similar income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The

. losses arising from impairment of such investmenis are recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss as “Credit loss expense on financial assets”.

The Bank and its subsidiaries shall reclassify insignificant amount of held-te-maturity
investments before maturity into available-for-sale investments that:

(i) are so close to maturity or the financial asset's call date {for example, less than three
months before maturity) that changes in the market rate of interest would not have a
significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(i) occur after the entity has collected substantially all of the financial asset’s original principal
through scheduled payments or prepayments; or

{iiy are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the entity's control, is non-recurring
and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Bank and lIts subsldiarles.

If the Bank and its subsidiaries were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of
financial investments -held-to-maturity before maturity (other than in certain specific. -
circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as
available-for-sale. Furthermore, the Bank and its subsidiaries would be prohibited from
classifying any financial asset as held to maturity during the following two years.
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7.4.

7.5.

7.5.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

From 1 January 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries do not reclassify its financial assets
subsequent to their initial recognition apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the
Bank acquires, disposes of, or lenninates a business line. Financial liabilllies are never
reclassified. The Bank and its subsidiaries did not reclassify any of its financial assets or
liabilities in 2017.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financiai assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired. The Bank and its subsidiaries also derecognise the assets if they have both
transferred the asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Bank and its subsidiaries have transferred the asset if, and only if, either:

» The Bank and its subsidiaries have transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the asset; or

» It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay fo a third party under a "pass—through”
arrangement.

Pass-through arrangemients are transactions when the Bank and its subsidiaries retain the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual
recipients’), when all of the following three conditions are met:

» The Bank and its subsidiaries have no ohligation to pay amaunts to the eventual recipients
unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term
advances by the entity with the right of full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued
interest at market rates;

» The Bank and its subsidiaries cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as
security to the eventual recipients for the obligation to pay them cash flows; and

» The Bank and its subsidiaries have to remit any cash flows it collects on behaif of the
eventual recipients without material delay. In addition, the Bank and its subsidiaries are
not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents during the short settlement period from the collection date to the date of
required remittance to the eventual recipients, and interest earned on such investments
is passed to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

» The Bank and its subsidiaries have transferrad substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset; or

» The Bank and. its subsidiaries have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

In relation to the above, the Bank and its subsidiaries consider the control to be transferred if,
and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer.
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7.5.

7.5.1.

7.5.2.

7.6.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
Financial assets {continued)

When the Bank and its subsidiaries have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or have entered into a pass~through arrangement, and have neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ continuing
involvement in it. In that case, the Bank and its subsidiaries also recognise an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Bank and its subsidiaries have retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying ameount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Bank and its subsidiaries could be required to repay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the
transferred asset, the Bank and its subsidiaries’ continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Bank and its subsidiaries may repurchase., However, in the case of
a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the
option exercise price.

The Bank and its subsidiaries also derecognise a financial asset, in particular, a loan to
custorner when the ferms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that it
substantially became a new loan, with the difference recognised as an impairment in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial- liabilities are generally reported gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to
having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without
being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the
following circumstances:

»  The normal course of business;
» The event of default;
» The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank and/or its counterparties.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries have no financial assets and liabilities
that are offset and recognised In net value in the consolidated financial statements.
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7.7.

7.8.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specific date in the future (“repo”) are
still recognised on the consolidated financial siatements as the Bank and its subsidiaries retain
substantially all of risl and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received from these
agreements and corresponding payment responsibility of the cash received, including accrued
interest payables, are recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position as a
liability in "Due to other banks”for purpose of reflecting economic nature of these transactions
as a borrowing te the Bank and its subsidiaries. The difference hetween the sale price and
repurchase price is interest expense and accrued during the effective duration of the contract
using the effective interest rate method. When the counter party has a right to sell or mortgage
bonds, subject to cases that the Bank and its subsidiaries reclassify these bonds in the
consolidated financial position report in financial assets held-for-trading mortgaged as
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cellateral or financial investiments available-for-sale mortgaged as collaterals.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specific date in the future
("reverse rtepo”) are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
corresponding cash paid under these agreements, including accrued interest receivables is
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset in "Due from other
banks” for purpose. of reflecting the economic nature of these. transactions as a loan to the.
Bank and its subsidiaries. The difference between the purchase price and resale price is
recorded in “Net inferest income” and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR.

If securities purchased under an agreement to resell are subsequently sold to third parties,
the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a short sale within financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair value with any yains or-lusses Included
in “Net trading income”.

Determination of fair value

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified bascd
on a hierarchy of vaiuation techniques, as summarised below:

» Level 1 financial instruments — Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
. unadjusted quoted prices. from.active markets.for.identical.assets.or liabilities.that the. ..
Bank and its subsidiaries access to at the measurement date. The Bank and its
subsidiaries consider markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with
regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quotes available at the reporting date.

» Level 2 financial instruments — Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available
over the entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive
markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield
curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required
for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are
comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, lhe Bank and iis
subsidiaries wili classify the instruments as Leve] 3.

&= Level 3 financial instruments — Those that include one or more unobservabie input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.
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7.8.

7.9.

7.8.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Determination of fair value (continued)

The Bank and its subsidiaries periodically review its valuation techniques inciuding the
adopted methodologies and model calibrations. However, the base models may not fully
capture all faclors relevant lo the valualion of the Bank and ils subsidiaries’ financial
instruments such as credit risk ("“CVA”), own credit ("DVA”) and/or funding costs (“FVA").
Therefore, the Bank and its subsidiaries apply various techniques to estimate the credit risk
associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-
based approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full
lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties
for non-collateralised financial instruments. The Bank and its subsidiaries estimate the value
of their own credil from market observable data, such as secondary prices for their traded
debt and the credit spread on credit default swaps and traded debts by itself.

The Bank and its subsidiaries evaluate the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-
by-instrument basis and reclassify instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end
of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018)
Overview of the ECL principles

As described in Note 6.1, the adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Bank and
its subsidiaries’s loan loss impairment method by-replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach
with a forward-looking ECL approach. From 1 January 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries
have been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt
financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment under IFRS 9,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the assat
(the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12-month expected credit loss
as outlined in Note 7.9.2. The Bank’s policies for determining if there has been a significant
increase inf credit risk aré sét out in Note 41.2.4.5.

The 12-month ECL is the portion of life time ECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Both life time ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

‘The Bank's policy for grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis is explained in

Note 41.2.4.6.

The Bank has established a policy to psrform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by censidering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. This is further explained in Note 41.2.4.5.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and
POCI, as described below:
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7.9.1.

7.9.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Overview of the ECL principles (continued)

g

Stage 1

» Stage 2

» Stage 3

>

POCI

When loans are first recognised, the Bank and its subsidiaries recognise an
aliowance based on 12-month ECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where
the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Bank and its subsidiaries record an allowance for the life time ECLs. Stage
2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the [oan
has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Loans considered credit-impaired (as outfined in Note 41.2.4.1). The Bank and
its subsidiaries record an allowance for the life time ECLs.

Purchased or originated credit impaired (“POCI") assets are financial assets
that are credit impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair
value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognised
based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or released to the
extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial asset for which the Bank and its subsidiaries have no reasonable expectations
of recovering either the entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the
financial asset.

The calculation of ECLs

The Bank and its subsidiaries calculate ECLs based on three probability-weighted scenarios
to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows thal the Bank and its subsidiaries expect to recelve. The
mechanics of the ECL calcutations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

» Probability

‘!’

of Default
(PD")

Exposure
at Default
(“EAD")

Loss
Given
Default
{("LGD")

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is
still in the portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in Note 41.2.4.2.

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD is further
explained in-Note 41.2.4.3,

The Loss Given Defauilt is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usualiy
expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained in
Note 41.2.4.4,
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7.
7.9.

7.9.2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from 1 January 2618) (continued)
The calculation of ECLs (continued)

When eslilnaling the ECLs, lhe Bank and lls subsldlares consider three scenarlus {base
case, upper, and downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs.
When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how individually
significant loans are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the loans will
make repayment timely and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for
selling the asset.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a
financial instrument unless the Bank and its subsidiaries have the legal right to call it earlier.
For mortgage portfolio, however, the Bank and its subsidiaries account for the observed
payment behaviour of their customers into their calculation of the lifetime ECL by adjusting
their assessment of EAD accordingly. Behavioural lifetime is stated in the table below:

Product: ~ 7|\ Behavioural Tifetime -
Mortgage Contractual life
(including Project Mortgage) 5~ 10 years 5.5 years
10 - 20 years 8.5 years
- 20-99years - T.5years

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying
amount.

Allowances for ECLs for undrawn loan commitments are assessed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

“p Stage1  The 12-month ECL1s ¢calculated as the portion of lite time ECLs that represent —

the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Bank and its
subsidiaries calculate the 12-month ECL allowances based on the expectation
of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These
expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and
multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the
original EIR. This calculation is made for each of the three scenarios, as
explained above.

= Stage2 When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Bank and ite subsidiaries record an allowance for the life time ECLs. The
mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple
scenarios, but PDs and LGDs arc cstimated over the lifetime of the instrument,
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR.

= Stage3 For loans considered credit-impaired, the Bank and its subsidiaries recognise
the lifstime expected credit losees for these loans. [he method 18 similar to
that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

= POCI POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
The Bank and [ts subsldlarles only recognise the cumulative changes in lile
time ECLs since initial recognition, based on a probability-weighting of the
three scenarios, discounted by Lthe oredit adjusled EIR.
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7.9.

7.9.2.

7.9.3.

7.94.

7.9.5.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (conlinued)
The calcufation of ECLs (continued)

# Loan When estimating life time ECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank and
commit-  its subsidiaries estimate the expected portion of the loan commitments that
ments and will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the
letter of  present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn
credit down, based on a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The expected

cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on
the loan.

For loan comnmilinents and lellers of credil, the ECL is recognised within
“Impairment losses on off-bafance sheet commitments” under "Other
liabifities”.

» Financial The Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the
guarantee amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the
contracts  consolidated statement of profit or loss, and the ECL allowances. For this

purpose, the Bank and its subsidiaries estimate ECLs based on the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate
relevant to the exposure. The calculation is made using a probability-
weighting of the three scenarios. The ECLs related to financial guarantee
contracts are recognised within "Impairment losses on off-balance sheet
commitments” under “Other liabilities”.

Debt instruments méasured at FVOCft

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of
these financial assets in the statement of financial posilion, which remains al fair value.
Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at
amortised cost is recognised in OCl as an accumulated impairment amount, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCl is recycled to
the profit and loss upon derccognition of the assets.

Purchased or coriginated credit impaired financial assets (POCI)

For POCI financial assets, the Bank and its subsidiaries only recognises the cumulative
changes in life time ECL since initial recognition in the loss allowances.

Forward-looking information

Inits ECL models, the Bank and its subsidiaries rely on a broad range of forward looking
information as economic inputs, such as:

= GDP growth;

»  Unemployment rates;

» Inflation;

»  House price indices.
The inputs and models used for calculating CCLs may not always capture all characteristics
of the market at the date of the consclidated financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative

adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such
differences are significantly material.
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7.

7.10.

7.10.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Bank and its subsidiaries assess at each reporting date, whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset, or
a group of financial assets, is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective avidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruplcy or
other financial reorganisation; default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and
where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from other banks, loans
and advances to customers as well as financial investments held-to-maturity), the Bank and
its subsidiaries first assess whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assets that are individually significant or are already under specific work out by management.

if there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
foss is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of eslimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credlit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loes. Tho intcrest income is recorded as part of “Inforest and similar income".
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously

recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced (but only up to the extent of the carrylng
-amount had the impairment not been recognised) by adjusting the allowance account, = " "

Loans and advances together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited
to the “Other operating income”.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original EIR. If a loan has a variable inferest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
fmpainment luss is the curront EIR. IF the Bank and s subsldlaries have reclassliled trading
assets to loans, advances and finance lease to customers, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the new EIR determined at the reclassification date. The calculation of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ internal credit rating system, that considers credit risk
characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due
status and other relevant factors.
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7.10.

7.10.1,

7.10.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment
are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assefs with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis
of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on which the historical
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with,
changes in related observable data from year to year {such as changes in unemployment
rates, property prices, commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative
ofincurred losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Financial investment available-for-sale

For financial investment available-for-sale, the Bank and its’ subsidiaries assess at each
reporting date of the consolidated financial statements whether there is objective evidence
that an investment is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, the Bank and its subsidiaries
assess individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment such as: Observable

‘data regarding a decline in estimated future cash-flows and or a decline in underlying collateral

(in the case of asset backed securities when the Bank and its subsidiaries expect to recover
the outstanding from the sale of the underlying assets) impacting the Bank and its subsidiaries'
abilily to recover all cash flows.

The -amounl recorded for impairment is lhe cumulalive loss measured as lhe difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Future interest
income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discdurit thé future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss,

The interest income is recorded as part of “Interest and similar income”. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence includes:

» A ‘significant’ or 'prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost;
andfor

» Other information about the issucr that may negatively affect an cquity issuer's
performance.

The Bank and its subsidiaries treat “significant” generally as 20% and "prolonged” generally
as greater than six months, Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
measired as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss ~ is removed from equity and recegnised in the consclidated statement of profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated
slaletnenl of proflt or loss, Increase in Lhe fal value afler rmpalitnenl are recognised In "Fai
value reserve”.
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7.11.

7.12.

7.12.1.

7.12.2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (bontinued)
Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement ts dependenl on the use of a specific asset or assels and the arrangeinent
conveys a right to use the asset.

The Bank and its subsidiaries as lessees

Leases that do not transfer to the Bank and its subsidiaries substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense
in the year in which they are incurred.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Bank and its subsidiaries and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

The effective interest rate method

Under both IFRS 9 and IAS 39, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(“EIR™) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, financial instruments
designated at FVTPL. Interestincome on interest bearing financial assets measured at FvVOCI
under IFRS 9, similarly to interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale or
held to maturity under IAS 39 are also recorded by using the EIR method. The EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. : ‘

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The Bank and it§ subsidiaries recognise interest income using a rate of return that represents
the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle {including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The
adjustrment is subsequently amortised - through “Interest and similar income” In the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ' '

Interest and similar income and expenses

The Bank and its subsidiaries calculate interest income by applying the EIR to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. The amoriised cost of
the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank and its subsidiaries revise their
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted amortised cost is calculated based on the
original or latest re-estimated EIR and the change is recorded as “Interest and simifar income”
for financial assets and “Interest and similar expenses” for financial liabilities.
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7.12,

7.12.2.

7.12.3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recognition of income and expenses (continued)
Interest and similar income and expenses (continued)

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired (as sel oul in Nole 7.9.1) and is, therefore,
regarded as 'Stage 3', the Bank and its subsidiaries calculate interest income by applying the
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (amortised cost net of expected credit loss) of
the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Bank and
its subsidiaries revert to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets (as set out in Note
7.9.4), the Bank and its subsidiaries calculate interest income by calculating the credit-
adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted
EIR is the interest rate that, at ariginal recognition, discounits the estimated future cash flows

{(including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the POCI assets.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured
at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual interest rate in “Net frading income”.

Fee and commission income

The Bank and its subsidiaries earn fee income from a diverse range of services they provide
to their customers as follows:

+ Fee income earned on the execution of a significant act

Incoms earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the
act is completed (for example, fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the
negotiation of, a transaction for a third party, such as an arrangement for the acquisition
of shares or other securities).

» Fee income earned from provision of services

Income earned from the provision of services is recognised as revenue over the period in
which the services are provided (for example, asset management, portfolic and other
management advisory and service fees).

» Feeincome that forms an integral part of the effective interestrate of a financial instrument” =

Income that forms an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument is
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate {for example, certain loan
commitment fees) and recorded as part of 'interest income’ in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Fee income can be divided into the following categories:

+  Commission : ‘
income earned in respect of sales or distribution of banking, investments and insurance
products. Commission earned from banking is on trade and bancassurance.

» Service charges and fees
Income earned on the services provided to retail and corporate customers, including
account management and varlous transaction-based "services, such as interchange
foreign currency transactions, money order processing and insufficient funds/overdraft
transactions.

» Underwriting fees
Income earned for the placement of a customer’s debt or equity securities.

» Brokerage income

Brokerage income includes fees earned from transaction-based services that are
performed ae part of investment management services.
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7.12.

7.12.3.

7.124.

7.12.5.

7.13.

7.14.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recognition of income an« expenses (continued)

Fee and commission income (continued)

» Fees on loans, advances and financing

Income earned in respect of loans, advances and financing such as loan commitments,
financial guarantees and standby letters of credit.

» Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the payment is
established. This is the ex-dividend date for listed equity securities, and usually the date
when shareholders have approved the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

» Customer loyalty programmes

Award credits under the customer loyalty programmes are accounted for as a separately
identifiable component of the transaction in which they are granted. The fair value of the
consideration received in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the cost of award
credits and the other components of the sale. The consideration allocated to award credits
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss under the caption of "Other
operating income” when award credits are redeemed.

Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Bank and its subsidiaries’ right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when the issuers’ shareholders approve the dividend.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value
and interest income of financial assets and financial liabilities at FvTPL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows
comprise of cash and gold, balances with the SBY, Government promissory notes and other
debt instruments, which are eligible for discount, balances with other banks with orlglnal terms

-to maturity not exceeding three months. from the transaction.date... -~ .. ..

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and treated as changes in accounting estimates,

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not
depreciated. The estimated usefu! lives are as follows:

Buildings 8 - 50 years
Office equipment 3 -10 years
Vehicles 6 - 10 years
Cther fixed assets 4 - 10 years

Property and equipment is derecognised on dispasal or when no futiire economic henefits are
expected from their use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in “Other operaling income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
year e assel Is derecoynised.

Definite land use rights are amortised aver the lease term.
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7.15.

C 7186,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This
involves recognising identifiable assets (including previously unrecognised intangible assets)
and liabilities (including conlingent liabilities but excluding future restrucluring) of the acyuired
business at fair value. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired, the discount on acquisition is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of acquisition.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Bank and ils subsidiaries’ inlerest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilitiss and contingent labilities acquired,

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in & business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Bank and its subsidiaries’' cash~generating units (CGUs) or group of
CGUs, which.are expected to benefit.from the synergies of the combination, -irrespective. of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Each unit to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Bank and its subsidiaries
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, and is not larger than
an operating segment in accordance with IFRS 8 - Operating Segments.

Where goodwill has been allocated to & CGU (or group of CGUs) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the CGU retained.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus
cumulative translation differences and goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assefs acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of Intangible assets are assessed to be eithar finite or indafnlte Intanglble
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usefui life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern
of consumption of future ececnomic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or methed, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. Thé amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
presented as a separate [ine item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Computer software 4 - 8 years
Others 4 - 8 years
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7.17.

7.18.

7.18.1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non~financial assets

The Bank and its subsidiaries, at each reporting date, assess whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. if any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Bank and its subsidiaries estimate the asset's recoverable amount.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to
sell and its value In use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount,

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmonts of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

For assets (excluding goodwill), an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Bank and its subsidiaries estimate the

asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed . _ .

only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss

Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future pericds. The Bank and its
subsidiaries have assessed and concluded that the non-financial assets are not impaired in
the reported periods.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
‘Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries by
the Sacial Insurance Agency which belongs to the Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social
Affairs. From 1 June 2017, according to Decision No. 585/QD-BHXH dated on 14 April 2017
and Decision No. 44/2017/ND-CP dated on 14 April 2017, the Bank and its subsidiaries are
required to pay a social insurance premium at the rate of 17.5% of an employee’s basic
monthly salary, salary-related allowances and other supplements. Other than that, the Bank
and its subsidiaries have no further obligation relating to post-employment benefits.

Unemployment allowance

According to Circular No. 28/2015/TT-BLDTBXH on guidelines for Article 52 of the Law on
Employment and Decree No. 28/2015/ND-CP dated 12 March 2015 of the Government on
guidelines for the Law on Employment in term of unemployment insurance, the Bank and its
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the unemployment insurance at the rate of 1% of
salary and wage fund of unemployment insurance jeiners and deducl 1% of monthly salary
and wage of each employee to contribute to the unemployment insurance.
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7.18.

7.18.1.

7.18.2.

7.19.

7.20.

7.20.1.

SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

Health insurance contribution

According to Decision No. 595/QD-BHXH dated on 14 April 2017, the Bank and its
subsidiaries are required to contribute to employee benefits by paying health insurance
premium to the Health Insurance Agency at the rate of 3% of an employee’s basic salary on
a monthly basis.

Voluntary resignation benefits

The Bank and its subsidiaries have the obligation, under Section 48 of the Vietnam Labour
Code 10/2012/QH13 effective from 1 May 2013, to pay allowance arising from voluntary
resignation of employees, equal to one-half month's salary for each year of employment up
to 31 December 2008 plus salary allowances (if any). From 1 January 2009, the average
monthly salary used in this calculation is the average monthly salary of the latest six-month
period up to the resignation date.

Provision

Provision is recognised when the Bank and its subsidiaries have a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is -
material, the Bank and its subsidiaries determine the level of provision by discounting the
expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
net of any reimbursement.

Corporate income tax
Current taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior year are measured at the amount
expected to be paid to (or recovered from) the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
are applied and enacted at the reporiing date.

Currentincome tax is charged or credited to the consoclidated statement of profit or loss except
when it relates to items recognised directly to equity the current income tax is also dealt with
in equity. : ‘

Current tax assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the Bank
and its subsidiaries intend to setile their current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities.
Because the applicability of tax laws and regulations on many types of transactions and
susceptible to various interpretation, amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements could be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax autherities.
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7.20.

7.20.2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Corporate income tax (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction which at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward
unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

» Where the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

» All deductible temporary differences from investments in subsidiaries, affiliates and joint

ventures lhat are definitely lemporary differences will be reversed in forecastable future

and taxable profit is used for those temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liakilities are measured at the tax ratés that are expécted to
apply in the year when the asset realised dr the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income i{ax benefits or expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss except for tax related to the fair value remeasurement
of available-for-sale assets or FVOCI] assets, foreign exchange differences, which are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income (“CCI”). These exceptions are
subsequenlly reclassifled from OCI o the consolidaled stalement of profit or loss together
with the respective deferred loss or gain. The Bank and its subsidiaries also recognise the tax
consequences of payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are
classified as equity, direcily in equity.

The Bank and its subsidiaries only offset deferred tax assets against liabilities when there Is

hoth a legal right to offset and it is'thé Bank arid its subsidiaries’ intention to settle on'a net
basis.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.21,

7.22,

7.23.

7.24.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Treasury shares

Owner equity instruments of the Bank which are acquired by it or by any of its subsidiaries
(treasury shares) are deducted from equity. Consideration paid or received on the purchase,
sale, issuance or cancellation of the Banlk's own equity instruments is recognised directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or
cancellation of own equity instruments.

Contracts on own shares that require physical settlement of a fixed number of own shares for
a fixed consideration are classified as equity and added to or deducted from equity. Contracts
on own shares that require net cash settlement or provide a choice of settlement are classified
as trading instruments and changes in the fair value are reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in “Net trading income”.

Fiduciary assets

The Bank and its subsidiaries provide trust and other fiduciary services that result in the
holding or investing in assets. Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as they are not assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

Share-based payments

Employees of the Bank receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settle transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on
which the refevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting date). The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled fransactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the Bank’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The profit or loss charge for a period is recorded in “Personnel expensss”and
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period and the corresponding amount is represented in share capital.

_ Equity reserves |

The reserves recorded in equity on the Bank and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial

statements include:;

» Fair value reserve, which comprises changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments or FVOCI assets:

» Reserve for shares to be issued, which includes the portion of compound financial
liabilities that qualify for treatment as equity.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

7.25. Statutory reserves
7.25.1. Reserves and funds of the Bank

The Bank is required to make the following allocations before distribution of profits:

Basis for calculation Maximum level
Capital supplementary 5% of profit after tax under Vietham  100% charter capital
reserve Accounting Standards ("VAS")
Financial reserve 10% of profit after tax under VAS Not regulated

Other equity funds are appropriated from profit after tax. The appropriation from profit after
tax and the utilisation of the other equity funds are approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. These funds are not required by law and are fully distributable.

7.25.2. Reserves and funds of subsidiaries

Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Asset Management Company
Limited: e

According to Circular No. 27/2002/TT-BTC dated 22 March 2002 issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the appropriation to reserves is made as in a similar way to the Bank,

Techcom Securities Company Joint Stock Company and Techeom Capital Management
Company Limited:

According to Circular No. 146/TT/2014/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance issued on 6
October 2014 guiding the financial regime for securities, fund management companies, from
2014, realised profit of the Company shall be distributed as follows:

Basis for calculation Maximum level
Capital supplementary 5% profit after tax under Vietnam 10% charter capital
reserve Accounting Standards
Financial reserve 5% profit after tax under Vietnam_ 10% charter capital

Accounting Standards
Financial reserve will be used to compensate losses in business operation. These above

reserves, are made at year end, not available for distribution and classified as items in
shareholder’s equity.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

7.26.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to date of issuing the consolidated financial
statements are listed below. The Bank and its subsidiaries intend to apply these standards
on their effectivo date. o S

a. IFRS 16 — Leases

The IASB issued the new standard for accounting for leases - [FRS 16 - Leases in January
2016. The new standard does not significantly change the accounting for leases for lessors.
However, it does require lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as lease
liabilities, with the corresponding right-of-use assets. Lessees must apply a single model for
all recognised leases, but will have the option not to recognise ‘short-term’ leases and leases
of 'low-value’ assets. Generally, the profit or loss recognition pattern for recognised leases
will be similar to today’s finance lease accounting, with interest and depreciation expense
recognised separately in the staternent of profit or loss. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted provided the new revenue
standard, IFRS 15, is applied on the same date.

Lessees must adopt IFRS 16 using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
appreach. The Bank and its subsidiaries are currently evaluating impact of IFRS 16 and has
plan of applying new standards on compulscry effective date.

b. IFRIC 23 - Uncetrtainty over income tax treatments

In June 2017, the IASB issued IFRIC interpretation IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The new interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement
requirements in 1AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax freatments. In such a
circumstance, an entity shall recognise and measure its current or deferred tax asset or
Hability applying the requirements in IAS 12 based on taxable profit (fax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates determined applying this Interpretation.
The interpretation concludes that an entity shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments based
on which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

IFRIC 23 is effective for annual periods begi'nning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application
is permitted.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements reguires
the Board of Management of the Bank to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomaes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amoeunt of assets or liabilities affected in the fulure periods.

in the process of applylng the Bank and Its subsldiaries' accounting policies, rmanagement
has made the following judgments and assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimalion uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due
to circumstances beyond the Bank and its subsidiaries’ control and are reflected in the
assumptions if and when they occur. Items with the most significant effect on the amounts
recoghised in the consolidated financial statements with substantial management judgement
and/or estimates are collated below with respect to judgements/estimates involved,
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cohtinued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

8.1.

8.2.

8.3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {(or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that inciude the use of valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable market data where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgments and estimations include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and
counterparty) and funding value adjustmants.

Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 across all categories
of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Bank's ECL calculations are outpufs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements
of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

» The Bank’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs fo the individual grades;

» The Bank’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assefs should be measured on a life time ECL basis and
the qualitative assessment;

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis;
» Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs;

‘Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,

such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and
LGDs;

» Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Bank's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust whon necessary. S

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement

is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

48




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

8.4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)

Provision and other contingent liabilities

The Bank and its subsidiaries operate in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature,
has a heightenad slemaent of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved
In various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings, arising in the
ordinary course of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ business. When the Bank and its subsidiaries
can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and
considers such outflows to be probable, the Bank and its subsidiaries records a provision
against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable,
but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. However, when the
Bank and its subsidiaries are of the opinicn that disclosing these estimates on a case-by-case
basis would prejudice their outcome, then the Bank and its subsidiaries does not include
detailed, cass-specific disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Given the
subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Bank and
its subsidiaries take into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the
matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to
conclude on these estimates.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

9. TRANSITION DISCLOSURES (continued)

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on reserves and retained earnings is as follows:

Fair value reserve and

retained earnings
Fair value reserve 7 i} VND miflion
Closing balance under IAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 583,552
Reclassification of debt securities from AFS to amortised cost (a) {39,201)
Recognition of expected credit [osses under IFRS 9 for debt
instruments at FVOCI (b) 88,542
Deferred tax in relation to the above (¢) (9,869)
Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 623,024
Retained earnings
Closing balance under |1AS 39 as at 31 December 2017 10,429,246
Recognition of IFRS @ ECLs including those measured at
FVOCI (see below) (d) (1,511,356)
Deferred tax in relation to the above (e) 302,271
Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 8,220,161
Total impact of adopting IFRS 9 {(a)+(b)+{d)) {1,462,015)
Tax on impact of adopting IFRS 9 ((c)+(e)) 282,402
Total change in equity due to adopting IFRS 9 (1,169,613

-The following table reconciles the aggregate opening credit loss- provision -allowance under -

IAS 39 and provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts in accordance
with IAS 37 — Provisions, Cantingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets to the ECL allowances

under [FRS 9,
Credit loss
provision under ECL under
IAS 39/1A8 37 as at "Re IFRS 9 as at
31 December 2017  measurement 1 January 2018
impairment allowances for VND million VND million VIND mifiion
- Cash and.cash-cquivalonts (IAS.39) . S e
Cash and cash equivalents (IFRS 9) - 6,026 6,026 .
Due from other banks (IAS 39)/
Due from other banks (IFRS 9) - 3,728 3,728
Loans and advances to customers
{IAS 39)/Debt instruments at
amortised cost (IFRS 9) 2,003,977 990,815 2,994,792
HTM securities (IAS 39)/
Debt instruments at amortised cost
{IFRS 9) 25196 28,406 53,602
AFS debt investment securities (IAS
39)/Debt instruments at amortised
cost (IFRS 9) 59,471 - 59,471
AFS debt investment securities (IAS
39)/Debt instruments at FVOCI
{IFRS 9) - 88,542 88,542
Loans sold and other financial
assets (IAS 38)/Dsabt instruments at
amortised cost {(IFRS 9) 1,643,172 179,365 1,722,537
Off-balance sheet items (IAS 39)/
Off-balance sheet items (IFRS 9) 236,094 214,474 450,568
3,867,910 1,511,356 5,379,266
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

10.

OPERATING SEGMENT

The Bank and its subsidiaries have four reportable segments, as described below, which are
their strategic business units. The strategic business units offer different products and
services, and are managed separately based on the Bank and its subsidiaries’ management
and internal reporting structure. For each strategic business unit, the Board of Management
(also the chief operating decision maker) reviews its operating results and internal
management reports on a quarterly basis. The following summary describes the operations
in each reportable segment.

» Commercial banking: Includes loans, deposits and ofher fransactions and balances
with banks, corporate and retail customers;

» Asset management: Undertakes the Bank's loan collaterals and restructured loans
management;

» Securities investment:  Conducts securities brokerage activities, securities trading
activities, securities underwriting activities and consultancy
services; and

» Fund management: Operates funds management activities and entrusted fund
management.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance
is measured based on segment profit before income tax, as included in the internal
management reports that are reviewed by the Board of Management. Segment profit is used
to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant
in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm'’s length basis.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

11.

12.

13.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Due from other banks

Loans and advances to cusiomers
Financial investments AFS

Debt instruments at FVOCI
Financial investments HTM

Debt instruments at amortised cost

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

Due to the Government and the SBY
Due to other banks

Deposits from customers

Other borrowed funds

Debt instruments issued

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Guarantee services

 Settlement and cash services

Bancassurance services

Income from guarantee for securities issuance
Trustee and agency services

Income from securities trading brokerage
Other services

Fee and commission expenses

Settlement and cash services
Treasury services
Expenses for securities trading brokerage

Other services

54
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2017
2018 {reclassified)
VND million VIND mitlion
1,147,989 620,822
15,381,622 13,070,546
- 2,903,083
3,150,273 -
- 393,011
915,964 -
20,595,348 16,987,472
2018 2017
VND milfion VND million
94,128 86,304
757,863 452,836
7,763,869 7,383,300
54,705 40,586
1,352,907 701,066
10,023,472 - - 8,664,092
2017
2018 {reclassified)
YND million VND milfion
4,799,247 4,715,883
347,576
1,763,054 1,465,532
722,481 512,882
1,160,413 374,551
212,520 1,543,389
118,572 50,676
474,681 572,855
(915,737) (556,782)
(517,780) {277 ,686)
(58,102) (53,905)
(30,528) (11,247)
{309,329} (213,944)
3,883,510 4,159,101




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

14.

15.

NET TRADING INCOME

Net gain from trading of derivatives

Net gain from trading of financial assels held-for-
trading

Net gain from trading of financial assets at FVTPL
Interest income from financial assets held-for-
trading

Interest income from financial assets at FVYTPL

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Net gain on sale of financial investments AFS
Net gain on sale of financial assets at FVOCI
Proceeds from the liquidation of other long-term

investments

Recovery of bad debts previously written off
Income fiorm-entrusted debt collection

Dividend income

Net gain from the liquidation of the subsidiary (*)
Income from loans sold

Others

2017

2018 {reclassified)

VND miltion VND million
473,203 288,288

- 478,665

156,489 -

- 236,229

118,174 -
747,866 1,003,182
2017

2018 (reclassified)

VND million VND million
- 954,140

914,301 -

- 355,192
1,422,885 1,116,820
25,826 71,659
275 334
864,782 -
630,025 77,612
154,358 162,570
4,012,462 2,738,327

(*) This is the income from the divestment of the Bank’s entire capltal in Techcom Finance

- Limited One Member Company.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

17.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2018 2017

VND million VND million

Salaries, bonuses and other related expenses 3,275,449 2,616,259
Employee preference loans 79,610 _ 30,012
Share-based payment 1,094,326 10,140
4,449 385 2,656,411

Equity-settied share-based payment

Shares are granted to the key management personnel and employees of the Bank. A portion
of the shares granted is subject to restriction of transfer for a period of 2 or 4 years. After each
year, shares are proportionately released from the transfer restriction.

Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions are presented by terms and
conditions as follows:

2018 2017
Employees entitled VND million VIND miilion Conditions
Shares granted to key
management personnel 37,745 6,000 Immediately
Minimum 2 years of
Shares granted to key employment after
management personnel - 4,140 the grant date
Employee Stock
Ownership Plan
("ESOP”) program to
employees 1,028,678 - Immediately
Minimum 4 years of
ESOP program to employment after
employees 27,903 - the grant date
1,094,326 10,140

Number of instruments relating to share-based payment transactions during the year are as
follows:

Number of instruments
Employees entitled 2018 2017 Conditions
Shares granted to key
management personnel ~ 1,300,000 o 600,000 Immediately
Minimum 2 years of
Shares granted to key employment after
management personnel - 414,000 the grant date
ESOP program to
employees 12,699,730 -  Immediately
' Minimum 4 years of
ESOP program to employment after
employees 2,000,000 - the grant date (*)
15,999,730 1,014,000

(*) Shares are proportionatsly released from the transfer restriction each year.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

17.

18.

19,

PERSONNEL EXPENSES (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment (continued)

The fair value of shares granted is determined based on the market price of share at the grant
date. Reconciliation of outstanding share-based payment arrangements is as follows:

Number of instruments 2018 2017
As at 1 January - 414,000
Granted during the year 2,000,000 -
Vested during the year - (414,000)
As at 31 December 2,000,000 -
OTHER QPERATING EXPEMSES
2017
2018 {reclassified)
VND million VIND milfion
Publication, marketing and promotion 300,951 263,412
Tax, duties and fees 102,603 77,426
Tools and equipment expenses 87,907 51,593
Telecommunication expenses 39,694 35,469
Expenses for maintenance and repair of assets 210,795 218,704
Utilities expenses 67,513 53,710
Expenditure on payment of insurance premium
for deposits from customers 193,813 166,187
Per diem expenses 99,747 71,397
Training expenses 34,930 29,455
Provision reversed for other non-financial
assets (Note 28) (1,498) (248)
Expense for social activities 32,375 83,975
Consultancy expenses 151,611 114,182
Conference expenses 75,687 41,958
Expenses on disposal of assets 119,441 793
Other debt handling cost 78177 41,532
Office management fee 50,383 45745
Expenses on security guard 72,707 60,280
Others 450,959 288,013
2,167,795 1,643,583

CURRENT INCOME TAX

Current corporate income tax (“CIT") payable is based on taxable income of the current
pericd. Taxable income differs from the income reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as taxable income excludes items of income or expenses that are taxable
deductible In other years due to the difference between the recorded under the accounting
policies of the Bank and its subsidiaries and the current tax regulations, and also does not
include items not taxable or deductible for tax purposes. Corporate income tax is payable by
the Bank and its subsidiaries is calculated using lax rates that have been enacted at the

reporting date.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

19.

CURRENT INCOME TAX (continued)

Provision for income tax expense in the current year is calculated as follows:

Profit before tax

Adjustments under VAS:

Non-taxable dividend income

Income transferred from previous year

Other non-taxable income

Temporary difference arising from prior year
which is deductible in this year

Adjustment on profit for consolidation purpose
Non-deductible expenses

Frior year non-deductible expenses reverted or
deductible this year

Adjustments under [FRS:

Adjustment for goodwill amortisation under VAS
Adjustments for loans and advances to customers
and due from other banks

Adjustments for debt and equity instruments at
FVOCI and amorttised cost

Adjustments for financial assets AFS and held-to-
maturity

Adjustment for financial assets at FVTPL
Adjustment for financial assets held-for-trading
Adjustments for other assets/liabilities

Employee expenses

Allowance for expected credit loss of off-balance
sheet commitments

Taxable Income

Income tax expense

- Income-tax-of prior year which has been. .-

under/{over) provisioned
Current income tax expense for the year

Income tax receivable at beginning of the year
Income tax payable at beginning of the year
Income tax paid during the year

Income tax adjusted for the previous years

Income tax payable at end of the year

2018 2017

VND million VND miltion
10,466,980 8,459,872
(275) (334)
(144,636) -

- (682)

- {129,430)

12,304 27.833
548,123 238,678
{190,213) {268,418)
29,646 (9,882)
(518,993) 309,922
67,458 -

- (338,531)

88,090 _ -

- (27,394)

{465,638) {361,685)
1,085,298 61,533
{91,826) ~ (57,538)
10,886,319 7,905,244
2,177,264 1,681,049
7982 . (16,233)
2,185,246 1,564,816
- (112)

866,900 336,725
(2,140,758) (1,034,529)
3,666 -
915,054 866,900

The slatutory incorne tax rale applied W the Bank and s subsldiarles 1s 20% of taxable

income,
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss after tax which is
attributable to shareholders holding ordinary shares of the Bank to the weighted average of
the number of common shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted earnings per share are calcuiated by dividing the profit or loss after tax which is
attributable to shareholders holding ordinary shares of the Bank to the total weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares which are issued in case all potential ordinary shares which have a diluted
impact are converted into ordinary shares.

The following information is used for calculating earnings per share:

2018 2017
Profit after tax attributable to shareholders holding
ordinary shares of the Bank for calculating basic
earnings per share (VND million) 8,094,967 8,776,426
Adjusted for appropriation to bonus and welfare
funds (VND million) {20,000} -

Profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank for calculation of
basic earnings per share (VND million) 8,074,967 6,776,426

~ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
used for calculation of basic earnings per

share 2,212,707,967 835,039,242
Earnings per share (VND)

Basic earnings per share 3,649 8,115
Dividends

Dividend payout shall be decided at Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

62

ot



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

22, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and gold

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV)

Investment securities with original terms of
three months or less

Due from other banks with original term of three

months or less
Allowance for expected credit losses

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
YND million VND million
2,606,467 2,344,362
10,555,483 4,279,431

11,632 -

24,096,866 16,078,826
(7,580) -
37,262,868 22,702,619

Impairment allowance for due from other banks and investment securities with original

terms of three months or less

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Bank’s internal credit rating system and stage classification. The amounts presented are
gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s internal grading system are explained

in Note 41.2.4 2.

371 December 2018

31 December 2017

Stage 1
Collective Total Total
VIND miilion VND miflion VND milfion
Performing 24,108,498 24,108,498 16,078,826
Group A rating 22,300,844 22,300,944 13,746,200
Group B rating 1,807,554 1,807,554 2,332,626
24,108,498 24,108,498 16,078,826

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances

is as follows:

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2018

New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid

{excluding write offs)

As at 31 Dacember 2018

ECL allowances as at 1 January 2018
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid
{excluding wrile offs)

As at 31 December 2018
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Stage 1
Collactive Total
VND miflion VND million
16,078,826 16,078,826
24,108,498 24,108,488
(16,078,826) {16,078,826)
24,108,498 24,108,498

Stage 1
Collective Total
VND million VND miflion
6,026 6,026
7,580 7,580
(G,026) (6,026)
7,580 7,580




Vietham Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

23. DUE FRCM OTHER BANKS

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND mitlion VIND milfion
Due from other banks
- Balances with criginal term of over three
manths . S ‘ 137,399 . 191,703
- Loans to other banks 11,539,333 14,091,080
Allowance for expected credit losses (4,809) .
11,671,923 14,282,783

Impairment allowance for due from banks

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Bank's internal credit rating system and stage classification. The amounts presented are
gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s internal grading system are explained

in Note 41.2.4.2.

As at 31 December 2018
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31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Stage 1
Collective Total Total
VND million VND million VYND milfion
Performing 11,676,732 11,676,732 14,282,783
Group A rating 6,437,369 6,437,369 5,999,921
Qroup B rating 5,238,363 5,230,363 8,282,862
11,676,732 - 11,676,732 14,282,783
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances
is a5 follows:
Stage 1
Collective Total
VND milfion VND million
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January
2018 14,282,783 14,282,783
New assets originated or purchased 11,644,197 11,644,197
Assets derecognised or repaid
(excluding write offs) (14,250,248) (14,250,248)
As at 31 December 2018 11,676,732 11,676,732
Stage 1
Collective Total
VND million VND million
ECL allowances as at 1 January 2018 3,728 3,728
New assets criginated or purchased 4,804 4,804
Assets derecognised or repaid o .
(excluding write offs) (3,728) {3,728)
Changes to inputs used for ECL
calculations 5 5
4,809 4,309




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

24,

25,

251,

25.2.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31 December 2018

Assels Liabilities Nominal value

VND miflion VND million VND miifion

Foreign exchange contracts 413,073 (408,224) 139,583,160

- Forward contracts 121,964 (117,057) 64,416,164

- Swap contracts 291,109 (291,167) 75,166,996
Cross currency swap and interest

rate swap contracts 166,447 {424,064) 11,386,132

579,520 {832,288) 150,969,292

31 December 2017

Assels Liabilities Nominal value

VND milfion VIND mifiion VND miifion

Foreign exchange contracts 933,956 (963,188) 127,589,061

-  Forward contracts 251,366 (125,294) 25,783,251

- Swap contracts 682,590 (837,894) 101,805,810
Cross currency swap and interest

rate swap contracts 108,044 (62,452) 5,194,635

1,042,000 {1,025,640) 132,783,696

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held-for-trading

Debt securities held-for-trading

- Government bonds

- Bonds issued by local credit institutions
irn which: Bonds with setffement guaranteed
by the Government

- Bonds issued by local economic entities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities at FVTPL

- Governmenl bonds

- Bonds issued by local credit institutions
in which: Bonds with settlement guatranteed
by the Government

- Bonds issued by local economic entities

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
VIND million VND miltion
- 4 240,758
- 123,652
- 123,652
- 2,809,582
- 7,173,992

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
VND miflion VND milfion
3,810,818 -
2,766,874 -
1,717,424 -
1,159,384 -
7,736,876 -
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

26.

26.1.

26.2.

FINANCIAL ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE MEASURED AT FVTPL
Financial investments available-for-sale

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND milfion VIND miilion
Debt securities
Government bonds - 13,987,622
Bonds issued by local credit institutions - 18,119,635
In which: Bonds with setflement guaranteed
by the Government - 13,053,188
Bonds issued by local economic entities - 15,807,710
- 47,914,867
Allowances for impairment losses - (59,471)
Equity securities
Equity securities measured at fair value - 228,057
Equity securities measured at cost - 11,667
- 239,724
Total financial investments available-for-sale - 48,095,120

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND million VND miflion
Government bonds 5,414,027 .
Bonds issued by local credit institutions 20,441,322 -
In which: Bonds with seftlement guaranteed
by the Government ' 11,430,099 -
Bonds issuted by local economic entities - 38,606,191 - - -
Total debt instruments at FVOCI 64,362,440 -

- The table below shows the falr value of the Bank's debt instruments measured at FVOCI by -

credit risk as at 31 December 2018, based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system and
stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of
the Bank’s internal grading system are explained in Note 41.2.4.2 and policies about whether
ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set outin Note 41.2.4.6.

Stage 1

Collective Total

VND. miffion - VND million

Performing 64,362,440 64,362,440
Group A rating 42,186,868 42,186,868
Group B rating 15,187,921 15,187,921
Group C rating 480,899 480,899
Group D rating 6,506,752 6,508,762
64,362,440 64,362,440
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE MEASURED AT FVTPL (continued})

26.2. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)

An analysis of changes in the fair value and the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows:

Fair value as at 1 January 2018
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid
(excluding write offs)

Change in fair value

As at 31 December 2018

ECL as at 1 January 2018

New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid
(excluding write offs)

Changes to inputs used for ECL
calculations '

As at 31 December 2018

For the year 2018
Stage 1
Collective Total
VND miflion VND miffion
43,911,638 43,911,638
53,610,379 53,610,379
{33,529,311) (33,529,311)
369,734 369,734
64,362,440 64,362,440
For the year 2018
Stage 1
Colflective Total
VND miflion VND million
88,542 88,542
180,246 180,246
(79,181) (79,181)
(2,339) (2,339)
187,268 187,268

26.3. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

“Equity securitiesat FVOCI -~

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND million VND miffion
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Vietham Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

26,

26.4.

26.5.

FINANCIAL ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE MEASURED AT FVTPL (continued)

Financial investments held-to-maturity

Government bonds

Bonds issued by local credit institutions
In which: Bonds with settlement guaranteed

by the Government

Bonds issued by local economic entities

Allowances for impairment losses

Total financial investments held-to-maturity

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Government bonds

Bonds issued by local credit institutions
In which: Bonds with settlement guaranteed

by the Government

Bonds issued by local economic entities
In which: Bonds with settlement guaranteed

by the Government
Allowance for expected credit losses

Total debt instruments at amortised cost

37 December 2018
VND miflion

31 December 2017
VND million

613,068
2,149,201

32,396
3,172,714

5,935,883
(25,196)

5,910,687

31 December 2018
VND million

31 December 2017
VND million

3,853,144
32,373

32,373
20,594,026

118,029
(281,796)

24,197 747

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31
December 2018 based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system and stage classification.
The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank's internal
grading system are explained in Note 41.2.4.2.

Performing

Group A rating
Group B rating
Group C rating
Group D rating

Stage 1 Stage 3

Collective individual Total
VND milflion VND million VND million
2,562,631 - 2,562,631
12,367,543 - 12,367,543
5,578,196 - 5,578,196

- 3,871,173 3,971,173
20,508,370 3,971,173 24,479,543
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

26.
26.5.

27.

FINANCIAL ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE MEASURED AT FVTPL (continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances

is as follows:

. Forthe year 2018
Stage 1 Stage 3
Collective Individual Total
VND miflion VND miltion VD miffion
Gross carrying amount as
at 1 January 2018 5,935,883 3,964,027 9,899,910
New assets originated or
purchased 18,742,888 7,146 18,750,034
Assets derecognised or repaid
(excluding write offs) (4,170,401) - {4,170,401)
Ag at 31 December 2018 20,508,370 3,971,173 24,479,543
For the year 2018
Stage 1 Stage 3
Coflective individual Total
VND miffion VIND million VND rmniflion
ECL allowances as at 1
January 2018 53,602 59,471 113,073
New assets originated or
purchased 38,0583 730 38,783
Assets derecognised or repaid
{(excluding write offs) (43,333) - {(43,333)
Changes to inputs used for
ECL calculations (4,442) 177,718 173,273
As at 31 December 2018 43,880 237,916 281,796
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
VND miltion VIND miflion
Non-retail 93,819,613 99,839,640
Retail 72,431,641 64,995,880
166,251,254 164,835,520
Aliowances for expacted credit losses/impairment
losses (3,325,187) {2,003,977)
162,926,067 162,831,543

Allowances for expected credit loss/impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

comprises of. :

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VIND million VND million
Individually assessed allowances for expected
credit lossesfimpairment losses 828,385 846,221
Collectively assessed allowances lor expected
credit losscs/impairment losses 2,496,802 1,187,756
3,325,187 2,003,977
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

28. OTHER ASSETS

Financial assets

Depaosits for office rent (i)
Prepayment to suppliers
Deposits for economic contracts
Deposits for land purchase (ii)
Receivables from loans sold (iii)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Receivables from principal and interest of bonds

due on holiday

Settlements on behalf of other credit
institutions (iv)

Other financial assets

Non-financial asscts
Deposits for land purchase (ii)

Receivables related to Interest Subsidy Program -

Materials
Prepaid expenses
Other non-financial assets

Allowances for ECL/impairment losses (v)

VND million VND million
106,861 395,207
00,734 55,040
77,349 45,586
. 2,352,839
- 1,862,038
231,486 368,300
2,259,597 134,884
589,732 630,102
3,355,759 5,843,996
377,467 -

- 20,006 21,148 -
10,735 24,475
706,746 513,402
826,664 -
1,941,618 559,025
5,207,377 6,403,021
(44,521) (1,544,670)
5,252,856 4,858,351

(i) These are deposits for office rent of the Bank’s headquarter and branches.

(i) These are deposits to purchase the Bank's offices in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City.

(i} These are outstanding receivables from loans sold to authorised debt purchasing

companies,

(iv) This represents the amounts pending for settlement at NAPAS due to timing difference.
The outstanding items have been cleared in January 2019.

(v) Allowances for ECL/impairment losses of other assets includes:

Receivables from loans sold
Othar financial assets

Other non-financial assets

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND rpf!!ionr VND million
- 1,475,421

44,621 67,761

- 1,498

44,521 1,644,670
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

28.

29,

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

An analysis of changes in allowances for ECL/impairment losses on receivables during the

years is as follows:;

Balance as at 1 January

Allowances reversed from receivables from loans
sold (Note 16)

Allowances (reversed)/made for other financial
assets (Note 16)

Allowances reversed due to the liquidation of
subsidiary (*}

Utilisation of allowances

Aflowances reversed for other non-financial
assets (Note 18)

Balance as at 31 December

2018 2017

VND million VND million
1,724,035 2,184,606
(1,647,504) (640,005}
{3,605) 317
(26,863) -
(44) -
(1,498) (248)
44,521 1,544,670

(*) This is the reversal of allowances for other assets previously owned by Techcom Finance

Limited One Member Company.

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances

for receivables from loans sold is as follows:

Gross carrylng amount as at 1 January 2018
Wirite offs

As at 31 December 2018

ECL allowances as at 1 January 2018
Write offs

As at 31 December 2018

FROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Tangiblc assets
Construction in progress {(“CIP")
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Stage 3
Colfective Total
VND miltion VND million
1,862,038 1,862,038
(1,862,038) (1,862,038)

Stage 3
Collective Total
VND million VND million
1,647,504 1,647,504
{1,647,504) {1,647 504)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND miffion VND million
2,601,599 2,408 595
3,459,747 046,456
6,061,346 3,352,051
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

30.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of goodwill and other intangible assets during year ended 31 December 2018 is

as follows:
Computer
Gooawifl software Others Total

VIND milfion VND miltion VIND million VND milftion
Cost
As at 1 January 2018 49 411 828,990 4,403 882,804
Additions - 52,335 - 52,335
Transfer from CIP - 7,888 - 7,888
Disposals (49,411) (339) (42) {49,792)
Others - (1,024) - (1,024)
As at 31 December 2018 - 867,850 4,361 892,211
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2018 - 487,127 2,385 489 512
Charge for the year - 90,345 78 90,423
Disposals - (243) {42) {285)
Others - (760) - {760)
As at 31 December 2018 - 576,469 2,421 578,890
Net book value
As at 1 January 2018 49 411 341,863 2,018 393,292
As at 31 December 2018 - 311,381 1,940 313,321

Movement of goodwill and other intangible assects during year ended 31 December 2017 is

as follows:
Computer
Goodwill soffware Others Total

___VND miffion VND mr’ﬂ{on ‘ VND mil._f_ign . VND _mil(ion
Cost
As at 1 January 2017 49,411 802,879 4,403 856,693
Additions - 41,408 - 41,408
Others - {15,297) - (15,297)
As at 31 December 2017 49,411 828,990 4,403 882,804
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2017 - 408,308 2,307 410,616
Charge for the year - 94,115 78 94,193
Others - {15,287) - {15,297)
As at 31 December 2017 - 487,127 2,385 489,512
Net book value
As at 1 Januar‘y 2017 49,411 394‘570 2,096 446,077
As at 31 December 2017 49,41 1 341 ,863 2,018 393,292




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

31. DUE TO THE GOVERNMENT AND THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND million VND million
Deposits from the State Treasury 2,008,425 1,004,111
Borrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam 4,024,907 -
6,033,332 1,004,111

32. DUE TO OTHER BANKS
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
VND million VND million
Demand deposits 5,037,660 1,034,798
Term deposits 23,970,642 20,291,787
Borrowings 6,516,988 24,195,620
35,525,290 45,522,205

33. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND miition VND million
Retail customers: 143,822,470 122,660,942
- Term deposits 118,297,204 106,577,604
- Current accounts 25,524,063 16,081,658
- Marginal deposits 1,203 1,880
Corporate customers: 60,095,986 50,593,993
- Term deposits 27,101,639 24,883,196
- Current accounts 29,767,481 22,663,700
- Marginal deposits 3,226,876 3,047,097

203,918,466

173,254,935

34, OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND miltion VND million
Other borrowed funds in VND:
- International credit project with Japan Bank
for Inlernallonal Cooperatlon 111,247 160,983
- Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Investment and Development of Vietnam 882,222 754,933
993,469 915,916

79



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

35.

36.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND million VND milfion
Bonds 7,027,302 13,301,849
- From 1 year to 5 years 3,082,405 6,648,184
- Qver 5 years 3,944,897 6,653,665
Certificates of deposits 6,332,249 4,496,191
-  Upto 12 months 6 6
- From 1 year to 5 years 6,332,243 4,496,185

13,359,551 17,798,040

A reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

As at 1 January 2018

Proceeds from long-term debt instruments issued qualified to
classify as subordinated debts

Payments for long-term debt instruments issued qualified to classify
as subordinated debts

Accrued interest

As at 31 December 2018

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

31 December 2018

Bonds with term
over 5 years
VND million

6,653,665
310,000

(3,023,087)
4,319

3,944,887

31 December 2017

VYND miffion VND million

Value added tax 16,080 10,408

Corporate income tax 915,054 866,900
COthertaxes ... ABR2

980,062 928,393
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

37.

37.1.

OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND million VND million
Remittance payables (*) (i) 5,059,137 827,230
Payables for marketing and promotion activities (*) 1,965 20,135
Reimbursements awaiting settlement (*) : 19,577 6,990
Deposit certificates of customers awaiting
settlement {*) 85,103 105,583
Amount awaiting settlement (*) 137,805 176,308
Deferred proceeds from sales of collaterals 83,833 156,580
Bonus and welfare 7,062 2,680
Payable to employees 794,768 668,538
DLeferred income 169,815 81,510
Accrued salaries 401,467 237,113
Advance from customers (*) 1,798 52,695
Accrued operating expenses 441,414 368,949
Allowances for credit losses on off-balance sheet
commitments (Note 37.7)/Provision for off-balance
sheet commitments (Note 37.2) 358,742 236,094
Other payables (*) , 400,002 162,167

7,962,488 3,202,472

in which:
Toftal financial liabilities 5,705,387 1,441,008

{*) These are financial liabilities.

(i} This represents the amounts pending for settiement at NAPAS due to timing difference.

The outstanding items have been cleared in January 2018.

Allowances for credit losses on off-balance sheet commitments

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding allowances for

credit losses in relation to off-balance sheet commitments is as follows:
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

37.
37.2.

38.

38.1.

OTHER LIABILITIES {continued)

Provision for off-balance sheet commitments as at 31 December 2017

Individual Collective Total

VND million VND milfion VND miflion

As at 1 January 2017 293,632 293,632
Allowances written off during the year - (57,538) (57,538)
As at 31 December 2017 - 236,094 236,094

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Authorised

Crdinary shares

Ordinary shares

31 December 2018
Number of shares

31 December 2017
Number of shares

3,496,592,160

1,165,530,720

Number of shares VND million

As at 1 January 2018 1,165,530,720 11,655,307

Issuance of shares 2,331,061,440 23,310,615

As at 31 December 2018 3,496,592,160 34,965,922
Treasury shares and Share premium

Share premium Treasury shares

VND miltion VND mitfion

Asat1January2018 SAEEESET T @0HAETy

Issuance of shares (13,986,369) (14,587)

Equity-settled share-based payment 1,060,418 6,005

Sale of treasury shares 12,324,846 3,996,331

As at 31 December 2018 1,563,953 (56,798)

Nominal value of the Bank's ordinary share is VND 10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote
at shareholders’ meeting of the Bank. All shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as
declared from time to time. Al ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Bank’s
residual assets.

During the year, the Bank sold 14,699,730 treasury shares to their employees under
Fmployee Stock Ownership Plan program and 157,653,615 treasury shares to foreign
investors.

The Bank increased its charter ¢apital from VND 11,655,307 million to VND 34,965,922 million
by Issulng ordinary shares using owner’s equity in pursuant to Decision No. 1624/QD-NHNN
dated 10 August 2018 granted by the SBY, Official Letter No. 4331/UBCK-QLCB dated 12
July 2018 issued by the State Securities Commission and Business Registration Certificate
with business code No. 0100230800 amended for the 50t time on 10 August 2018 by Hanaoi
Department of Planning and Development.
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Vietham Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

39.

a.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following section describes how to determine the fair value of financial instruments recorded
at fair value using valuation methods. The method is based on estimates and assumptions of
the Bank and its subsidiaries which are made on the views of market participants.

Methods for determination of fair value and fair value level

The Bank and its subsidiaries use the following levels to assess and present the fair value of
financial instruments:

Level 1: Listed {(unadjusted}) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: lechnlques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded falr value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Valuation techniques
Government debt securities

Government debt securities are financial instruments issued by sovereign governments and
include both long-term bonds and short-term bills with fixed or floating rate interest payments.
These instruments are mostly highly liquid and traded in active markets resuiting in a Level 1
classification. When active market prices are not available, the Bank uses discounted cash flow
models with cbservable market inputs of similar instruments and bond prioes to estimate future
index levels and extrapolates yields outside the range of active market trading, in which
instances the Bank classifies those securities as Level 2.

Debt securities issued by credit institutions and corporates

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, some may have
more complex coupon or embedded derivative characteristics. The Bank uses active markst
prices when available, or other observable inputs in discounted cash flow models and the
relevant credil spreads o estimate the corresponding falr value. Bonds Issued by corporates
and credit institutions are Level 1 instruments when the bonds are listed in active market, Level
2 instruments where inputs are observable data or Level 3 instruments where significant inputs
cannot be referenced to observable data and, therefore, inputs are adjusted for relative tenor
and issuer quality.

Equity instruments

Some equity instruments are actively fraded on public stock axchanges with readily available
active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1.

Equily investments In non-listed entltles are inltlally recognised at transaction price and re-

measured (to the oxtent information is available)} and valued on a case-by-caze basis and
classified as Level 3.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

39.

a.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
Financial instruments recorded at fair value (continued)
Cross currency swap and interest rate swap

The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models,
using present value calculations by estimating future cash flows and discounling thetn wilh he
appropriate yield curves incorporating funding costs relevant to the position. The Bank's cross
currency swap and interest rate swap contracts are generally Level 2.

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts include foreign exchange forward and swap contracts. These
instruments are valued by either observable foreign exchange rates, observable or calculated
forward points and option valuation models. The Bank classifies foreign exchange contracts as
Level 2 financial instruments when no unobservable inputs are used for their valuation or the
unobservable inputs used are not significant to the measurement (as a whole).

The following table presents the fair value of the financial instruments by levels as at 31

December 2018:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 " Total
VND million  VND million  VND milfion  VND million
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities {*) - - 11,632 11,632
Financial-assets at FVTPL :
Government bonds 2,073,954 1,736,864 - 3,810,818
Credit institution bonds 1,658,525 58,899 1,049,250 2,766,674
Corporate bonds o - 1,159,384 1,159,384
3,732,479 1,795,763 2,208,634 7,736,876
Derivative financial assets
Foreign exchange contracts - 413,073 - 413,073
Cross currency swap and interest L :
rate swap - 166,447 - 186,447
- 579,520 - 579,520
Debt instruments at FVOCI
Government bonds 1,917,092 3,497,835 - 5,414,927
Credit institution bonds 3,742,098 7,688,001 9,011,223 20,441,322
Corporate bonds 4,598,799 - 33,907,392 38,506,191
10,257,969 11,185,836 42,918,615 64,362,440
Equity instruments at FYOCI 623 - 14,179 14,802
Derivative financial liabilities
Foreign exchange contracts - (408,224) - (408,224)
Cross currency swap and interest
rate swap - _ (424,064} - (424,064)
- {832,288) - (832,288)
Total 13,991,091 12,728,831 45,153,060 71,872,982

{(*) hveslinenl securllles which have orlglal lernn of Uree monlhs or less are 1eclasslfled Inlo

cash and cash equivalents.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

39.

a.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments recorded at fair value {continued)

The folldwing table presents the fair value of the financial instruments by levels as at 31

December 2017:

Financial assets
held-for-trading
Government bonds
Credit institution bonds

Corporate bonds

Derivative financial assets
Foreigh exchanye conlracis
Cross currency interest rate swap

Financial investments
available-for-sale
Government bonds
Credit institution bonds
Corporate bonds

Equity securities

Derivative financial liabilities
Foreign exchange contracts
Cross currency Interest rate swap

. Total. ..

level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fotal

VND milfion  VND million  VND million  VND million

3,611,728 629,030 - 4,240,758

123,652 - - 123,652

241,449 - 2,568,133 2,809,582

3,976,829 625,030 2,568,133 7,173,992

- 933,956 - 933,956

- 108,044 - 108,044

- 1,042,000 - 4,042,000

7,624,332 8,315,060 - 13,939,392

2,104,071 10,049,117 5,066,447 18,119,635

721,786 99,653 14,875,030 15,796,369

808 ‘ 227,249 228,067

10,450,997 17,363,730 20,268,726 48,083,453

- (963,188) - (963,188)

- (82,452) - (82,452)

- (1,025,640) - (1,025,640)
14,427,826 18,009,120 22,836,859 565,273,805
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

39.

b.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments not recorded at fair value

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value is as

below:

- Debt Instruments at amortlsed cost:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
VND million  VND million VND million  VND million

As at 31 December 2018
Government bonds - 3,681,247 - 3,681,247
Credit institution bonds - 32,571 - 32,571
Corporate bonds - 91,082 20,233,478 20,324,560
- 3,804,900 20,233,478 24,038,378

As at 31 December 2017
Government bonds 638,260 - - 638,260
Credit institution bonds - 34,184 2,157,881 2,192,065
Corporate bonds - - 3,136,069 3,136,068
638,260 34,184 5,293,950 5,966,394

- Financial assets being cash and balances at the Stale Bank of Vielnam and due from
other banks and financiai liabilities being due to the Government, the State Bank of
Vietnam and other banks are short term with interest rates in line with the rates applied
by other banks and interbank rates. Therefore, their carrying amount approximates their

fair value.

- Financial assets being loans and advances to customers, and financial liabilities being
deposits from customers and debt instruments 1ssued:

= Deposits from customers, other horrowed funds and debts issued: the majority of the
deposits, other berrowed funds and debt instruments issued by the Bank bear interest
al rates which are similar to prevalling market rates (which Is the average interest
rates of deposits issued in the current period). Hence, the carrying value of these

financial liabilities shall be a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

* Loans to customers: most of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ loan portfolio earns interest
at rates which are floating in line with the market rates. Also, the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ loan portfolio does not have significant transaction costs, discount or
premium on the loan to customer transactions. Hence, the carrying value of the loans
shall be a reasonable approximation of the fair value.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

38.

d.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Information about significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

As at 31 December 2018, financial instruments measured with valuation techniques using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) included unquoted corporate bonds, unquoted credit
institutlon bonds, unquoted equity securities which are summarised as follows:

Classification Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs

Assets

Financial instruments at
fair value through profit

and losses

Unguoted credit instruction FVTPL Discounted cash flow Discount rates
bonds

Unquoted corporate bonds FVTPL Discounted cash flow Discount rates

Financial instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Unquoted credit institution FVOCI Discounted cash flow Discount rates
bonds

Unguoted corporate bonds FVOCI Discounted cash flow Discount rates
Unguoted equity securities FvVOCI Net asset value Net asset value,

garnings and financial
ratic multiples

The discount rates of unquoted corporate bonds are determined based on the average
interest rate of loans and advances to customers with similar characteristics: same sector,
tenor and repricing period while the discount rates of unquoted credit institution bonds are
determined based on the interest rate of governmental credit institution bonds with similar
tenors. A significant increase/decroase in the average interest rate of loans and advances to
customers and interest rate of governmental credit institution bonds would result in a
significant lower/higher fair value measurement of the unquoted corporate bonds and credit
institution bonds.

Valuation of unguoted equity securities includes unobservable inputs such as net asset value,
earnings and financial ratio multiples. A significant increase/decrease in the net asset value,
earnings and financial ratios multiples would result in a significant higher/lower fair value
measurement.

The movement in fair value arising from reasonably possible changes to the significant
uncbservable input is assessed as not significant.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

40,

REPO AND REVERSE REPO AGREEMENTS AND ASSETS HELD OR PLEDGED AS
COLLATERAL

The following table summarises the consideration paid, including accrued interest which is
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position under “reverse repos”, reflecting
the transaction’s economic substance as a loan to other bank and the liability arising from the
consideration received, including accrued interest which is recorded in the consolidated of
financial position under "repos”, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a
borrowing from other bank,

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND miffion VND million
Reverse repo agreements
Consideration paid for reverse repos 3,783,441 8,406,845
Repo agreements
Consideration received for repos 4,028,270 17,130,565

The foliowing table summarises the assets which are pledged and held as collateral for repo
and reverse repo agreements,

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
VND million VND million

Assets pledged as collateral
Assets pledged as collateral under repo
agreements 3,358,000 16,826,000

Assets held as collateral
Assets held as collateral under reverse repo
agreements (*) 3,653,000 8,213,500

(*) The assets are classified as debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive

income as at 31 December 2018 and financial investments available-for-sale as at 31
December 2017.

94



Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.

41.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Bank and its subsidiaries' activities, but is managed through a process
of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other
controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank and its subsidiaries’
cohlinuing piofilabilily and each person wilhin Ihe Bank and its subsidlaries is accountable for
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank and its subsidiaries are
exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and rarket risk, the latter being subdivided into trading
and non-trading risks. It is also subject to country risk and various operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment, technology and industry. The Bank's policy is to monitor those business risks
through the Bank and Its subsidiaries’ strategic planning process.

{i}  Risk Management Structure

The Board of Management is responsible for the detection and control of risks. However, each
separate member will be responsible for monitoring and managing the risks.

(i) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management in the Bank and its
subsidiaries.

(i) Risk Committee

The Risk Committee consuits with the Board of Directors in promiulgating the process and
policies related to risks in banking activities which are under the authority of the Board of
Directors.

The Risk Committee analyses and recommends the warnings on safety level of the Bank on
potential effectible risk and prevention methods in shorl-terin and lung-lenm.

The Risk Committee reviews and assesses suitability and effectiveness of current risk
management processes and policies of the Bank to recommend with the Board of Directors
on requirements of changes in the current processes, policies and operating strategy.

(iv} Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors is responsible for overall risk management in the Bank and its
subsidiaries. .

(v} Internal Audit
According to the annual internal audit plan, the operating procedures of the Bank and its
subsidiaries will be audited by the internal audit unit to examine the adequacy and compliance

of the procedures. Internal audit discusses the evaluation results with the Board of Directors
and reports findings and recommendations to the Board of Supervisors.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.

41.1,

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Introduction (continued)

{vi) Audit Risk Committee (“ARCO")

Audit Risk Committee ("ARCC") is established by the Board of Directors for the purpose of
tnderlaking a number of functions and tasks related to the audit, supervising and manltaring
risk management of the Bank's operating activities which are assigned/authorised by the
Board of Directors.

ARCO is responsible for promulgating and monitoring risk management framework, risk
appetites and risk management policies in the Bank's operating activities and approving
market risk limit, credit risk limit for each industry, business line and other general risk limits
of the Dank,

{(vii} Risk measurement and reporting system

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ risks are measured using a method that reflects both the
expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an
estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily performed based on limits established by the
Bank and its subsidiaries and complied with safety regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam.
These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as well as the level of risk that the Bank and its subsidiaries are willing to accept.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyse,
control and identify risks on a timely basis. This information is presented and explained to the
Board of Management, the Board of Directors and the Head of each business division. The
report includes aggregate credit exposure, credit metric forecasts, limit exceptions, liquidity
ratios and risk profile changes. The Board of Directors assesses the appropriateness of the
allowance for expected credif losses on a quarterly basis. The Board of Direclors receives a
comprehensive risk report once a quarter which is designed to provide all the necessary
information to assess and conclude on the risks of the Bank and its subsidiaries,

For all levels throughout the Bank and its subsidiaries, specifically tailored risk reports are

- prepared -and- dislribuled - in- order-to -ensure -thal -all- business -divisions- have-access Ao -~ - e - -

extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

{viii} Risk reduction

The Bank and its subsidiaries have been actively using collateral assets to reduce credit risk.
{(ix) Excessive risk concentration

Risk concentrations arise when a number of counterparties of the Bank and its subsidiaries
are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographicai region, or
have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in cconomic, political or other conditions.

Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ performance
to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Bank and its subsidiaries' policies and
procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is
used within the Bank and its subsidiaries to manage risk concentrations at both the
relationship and industry levels.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

4.
41.2,

41.2.1.

41.2.2,

41.2.3.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank and its subsidiaries incur a loss because its customers or
counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Bank and its subsidiaries
manage and control credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for
individual counterparties and for gecographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring
exposures in refation to such limits.

The Bank and its subsidiaries have established credit quality review processes to provide
early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties. Counterparty
limits are established through the use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each
counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to quarter revision. The credit quality review
process aims to allow the Bank and its subsidiaries to assess the potential loss as a result of
the risks to which they are exposed and take corrective action,

Credit quality and credit risk

Currently, the Bank and its subsidiaries have already set up internal credit ratings to score
customers based on risk level. The Bank and its subsidiaries have not established internal
credit rating for other financial assets based on their risk level.

Derivative financial instruments

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with
positive fair values, as recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position. In the
casc of credit derivatives, the Bank is also exposed to, or protected from, the risk of defaull
of the underlying entity referenced by the derivative.

With gross-settled derivatives, the Bank is also exposed to a settlement risk, being the risk
that the Bank honours its obligation, but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Bank and its subsidiaries make available to their customers guarantees that may require
that the Bank and its subsidiaries make payments on their behalf and enter into commitments
to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including
standby letters of credit) commit the Bank and its subsidiaries to make payments on behalf of
customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods.
Such commitments expose the Bank and its subsidiaries to similar risks to loans and are
mitigated by the same control processes and policies.
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Vietham Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41. . RISK MANAGEMENT ({continued)
41.2. Credit risk {continued)
41.2.4. Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018}

For the purpose of presenting consalidated financial statements under IFRS, the Bank and its
subsidiaries use an expected loss model for the recognltion of losses on Impalred financlal
assets. This means that the Bank and its subsidiaries always account for ECLs and update
the loss allowance for change in these ECLs at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. Consequently, the Bank and its subsidiaries need to take into
account the following information:

= The probability-weighted outcome;
# The time value of money; and
+ Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.

41.2.4.1. Definition of default and cure

The Bank and its subsidiaries consider a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage
3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past
due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Bank and its
subsidiaries consider a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such
events occur, the Bank and its subsidiaries carefully consider whether the event should result
in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations
or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include:

For freasury and money market, non-retail and retail lending portfolio:

» The financial instruments being rescheduled/restructured for the second time or extended
its maturity date for the first time;

» The borrower failing to fulfil Off-balance sheet commitments (including financial guarantee
and letters of credit) and the Bank has to grant them a loan to cover that obligation;

The borrower having interest exemption or deduction;
The borrower having non-performing loans at other credit institutions;
The borrower having written off exposure or sold loans;

Internal rating of the barrower indicating default; or

¥ ¥ ¥ v v

The borrower having early warning signals ("EWS") indicating default or near-default.

For share margin financing portfolio:
= A material decrease in the underlying collateral value where the collateral value coverage
does not meet 170%.

it is the Bank and its subsidiaries’ policy to consider a financial instrument as “cured” and
therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default criteria has been present for at

least one.month.for short term debts. or three consecutive months for middle. and-leng-term .

debts since the day the Bank and its subsidiaries received full repayment of the overdue
principals and interests or at the decision by relevant committees to remove it out of Default
portfolio. The decision on whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once oured
depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there
has been a significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

11.

41.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

41.2.4. Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

41.2.4.2. The Bank’s internal rating and probability of default estimation process

The Bank and its subsidiaries' Risk Management Department operates its internal rating
models. The Bank and its subsidiaries run separate models for their key portfolios in which
their customers are rated from Aaa to E3 using internal grades. The models incorporate both
qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the borrower,
utilise supplemental external information that could affect the borrower's behaviour. These
information sources are first used to determine the PDs within the Bank’s Basel Il framework.
The internal credit grades are assigned based on these Basel Il grades. PDs are then adjusted
for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking information and the IFRS 9 Stage
classification of the exposure. This is repeated for each economic scenarios as appropriate.

Treasury, trading and interbank relationships

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ treasury, trading and interbank relationships and counterparties
comprise of financial services institutions, banks, broker-dealers, and exchanges. For these
relationships with local financial institutions, the Bank’s internal risk department analyses
publicly available information such as financial information and other external data, and
assigns the internal rating that will be mapped to internal Master PD scale to identify PD, as
shown in the table below. For the relationships with foreign financial institutions, the Bank and
its subsidiaries use external data, e.g. Moody's, to identify PD for its counterparties, as shown
in the table below.

Foreign financial institutions:

Moody's rating 12 month Moody's PD 12 month IFRS PD
Aaa 0.00% 0.00%
Aai 0.01% 0.01%
Aaz2 0.02% 0.01%
Aa3 0.02% 0.01%

Al 0.04% 0.02%
A2 0.06% 0.03%
A3 0.09% 0.05%
Baa1 0.14% 0.08%
Baa?2 0.22% 0.13%
Baa3 0.33% 0.19%
Bat 0.51% 0.30%
Ba2 0.79% 0.46%
Ba3 1.22% 0.72%
b1 1.88% 1.11%
B2 2.88% 1.70%
B3 4.39% . 2.61%
Caa1 6.64% 3.98%
Caa2 9.92% 6.04%
Caad | o 14.57% o . 9.05%
Ca-C 20.89% 13.36%

99




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

41.2.  Credit risk (continued)

41.2.4. Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

41.2.4.2, The Bank’s internal rating and probability of default estimation process (continued)
Treasury, trading and interbank relationships (continued)

Local financial institutions:

Master scale 12 month Basel If 12 month IFRS
internal rating grade rating grade PD PD
AAA - AA Aa3 0.28% 0.14%
A -BBB Al 0.58% 0.29%
BB A2 0.89% 0.45%
B A3 1.35% 0.68%
CCC B1 2.04% 1.03%
CcC B2 2.97% 1.50%
C B3 4.27% 2.17%

Corporate lending

For corporate lending, the borrowers are assessed by specialised credit risk employees of the
Bank and its subsidiaries. The credit risk assessment is hased on a credit scoring model that
takes into account various histerical, current and forward-looking information such as:

B Financial report component, including the following criteria;
« Financial structure;
* Liquidity ratio;
» Solvency ratio;
» Revenue size & activities;

» Financial growth perspective.

» Transaction and past due behaviour, including the following criteria:

+ Delinguency status;
+ Relationship with the Bank;
o CASA balance;
+ Transactional information.
» Other oriteria that evaluote corporate customers’ credit ability:

» Characteristic, objective of corporate;

Competltive strategy;

« Boards of Directors;

e Product and TT objective;
e Supply and productibn;

s Distribution and sales;

e [ndustry risk.

The complexity and granularily of the rating techniques varies based on the exposure of the
Bank and its subsidiaries and the complexity and size of the customer.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

41.2.  Credit risk {continued)

41.2.4. Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

41.2.4.2. The Bank's internal rating and probability of default estimation process (continued)
Corporate lending (continued)

Internal rating grade 12 month Basel Il PD range 12 month IFRS 9 PD range

Performing
Aaa - A3 0.03% - 1.75% 0.00% - 0.85%
B1-B3 1.75% - 4.90% 0.85% - 2.53%
C1-C3 4.90% - 11.00% 2.53% - 5.90%
D1-D4 11.00% - 99.99% 5.90% - 99.99%
Non-performing
E1-E3 100.00% 100.00%
Retail lending

Retail lending comprises of auto, mortgage, credit cards, overdraft and other personal loans.
These products are rated by a scorecard with the following key inputs:

Demographic information;

Past-due information;

Transaction behaviour;

Limit utilisation behaviour;

¥ ¥ ¥V v v

Financial ability.

Retail lending - Secured - Real estates

internal rating grade 12 month Basel I PD 12 month IFRS 9 PD
Performing
Aga — A3 - 0.03% = 1.75% 0.01% - 0.62%
B1-B3 1.75% - 4.90% 0.62% - 1.86%
C1-C3 4.90% - 11.00% 1.86% - 4.38%
D1 -D4 11.00% - 99.99% 4.38% - 99.99%
Non-performing
E1-~E3 100.00% 100.00%

Retaif lending - Unsecured

Internal rating grade 12 month Basel Il PD 12 month (FRS 3 PD

Performing
Aaa — A3 0.03%-1.75% 0.08% - 3.24%
B1-B3 1.756% - 4.90% 3.24% -9.19%
C1-C3 4.90% - 11.00% 9.19% - 19.58%
D1-D4 11.00% - 99.99% 19.59% - 99.99%
Non-performing
E1-E3 100.00% 100.00%
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

41.2. Credit risk (continued)

41.2.4, Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018} (continued)
41.2.4.2. The Bank’s internal rating and probability of default estimation process (continued)

Retail lending - Secured - Other collaterals

Internal rating grade 12 month Basel Il PD 12 month IFRS 9 PD
Performing
Aaa -~ A3 0.03% - 1.75% 0.03% - 1.76%
B1-B3 1.75% - 4.90% 1.76% - 5.15%
C1-C3 4.90% - 11.00% 5.15% - 11.57%
D1-D4 11.00% - 99.98% 11.57% - 99.99%
Non-performing
E1-E3 100.00% 100.00%

41.2.4.3. Exposure at default

The exposure at default ("EAD") represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subjected to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client's ability to
increase its exposure while approaching defauit and potential early repayments too.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Bank and its subsidiaries assess the possible
default evenis within 12 months for the calculation of the 12-month ECL. However, if a Stage
1 loan that is expected to default in the 12 months from the balance sheet date and is also
expected to cure and subsequently default agaln, then all linked default events are taken Into
account. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at defaultis considered
for events over the lifetime of the instruments.

The Bank and its subsidiaries determine EAD by modelling the range of possible exposure
outcomes at various points in time, corresponding to the multiple scenarios. The IFRS 8 PDs
are then assigned to each economic scenario based on the outcome of the Bank and its
subsidiaries’ models.

41.2.4.4. Loss given default

For corporate lending, LGD values are assessed at least every three months by account
managers and reviewed and approved by the Bank's specialised credit risk department. The
credit risk assessment is based on a standardised LGD assessment framework that resuits in
a certain LGD rate. These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison with
the amount expected to be recovered or realised from any collateral held.

The Bank and its subsidiaries segment their retail lending products into smaller homogeneous
portfolios, based on key characteristics that are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows.
The applied data is based on historically collected loss data and involves a wider set of
transaction characteristics {e.g. product type, months on book, stc.) as well as borrower
characteristics.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.
41,2,

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

41.2.4. Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

41.2.4.4. L oss given default (continued)

Recent data and forward-looking economic scenarios are used in order to determine the IFRS
9 LGD rate for each group of financial instruments. When assessing forward-looking
information, the expectation is based on multiple scenarios. Examples of key inputs involve
changes in collateral values including property prices for mortgages, commodity prices,
payment status or other factors that are indicative of losses in the group. The Bank and its
subsidiaries estimate regulatory and IFRS 9 LGDs on a different basis. Under IFRS 9, LGD
rates are estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI IFRS 9 segment of each
asset class. The inputs for these LGD rates are estimated and, where pessible, calibrated
through back testing against recent recoveries. These are repeated for each economic
scenario as appropriate.

41.2.4.5, Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank and its subsidiaries continuously monitor all assets subject to ECLs. In order to
determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subjected to 12-month ECL
or life fime ECL, the Bank and its subsidiaries assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Bank and its subsidiaries apply a qualitative method for triggering a significant increase
in credit risk for an asset, such as the rating downgrade in notches. In certain cases, the Bank
and its subsidiaries may also consider that events explained in Note 41.2.4.1 are a significant
increase in credit risk as opposed fo a default. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have
increased significantly since initial recognition.

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets (as set outin Note

41.2.4.6), the Bank and its subsidiaries apply the same principlas for assessing whether thers
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.

41.2.
41.2.4.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (Policy applicable from 1 January 2018) {continued)

41.2.4.6. Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

As explalned in Note 7.9.1, being dependant on the factors below, the Bank calculates ECLs
either on a collective or an individual basis.

The Bank and its subsidiaries determine the allowances appropriate for each individually
significant loan or advance on an individual basis, taking into account any overdue payments
of interests, credit rating downgrades, or infringements of the original terms of the contract.
Items considered when determining allowance amounts include the sustainability of the
counterparty’s business plan, its ability to improve performance if it is in a financial difficuity,
projected receipts and the expected payout should bankruptcy ensue, the availability of other
financial support, the realisable value of collateral and the timing of the expected cash flows,
Expected credit loss allowances are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen
circumstances require more careful attention.

All the other assets which are not individually significant will be measured on a collective
basis. The Banks and its subsidiaries group these exposures into smaller homogeneous
portfolios, based on the combination of internal and external characteristics of the loans, as
described below:

For retail lending:

41.2.5.

> Months on book;
» Days past due;
b Product segment.

For corporate lending:
» Customer segment;
» Days past due.

Collateral assets

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank and its subsidiaries seek to use
collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities,
letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets
and credit enhancements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Bank's
statement of financial position. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of
ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly
basis. However, some collaterals, for example, cash or securities relating to margining
requirements, is valued daily,

To the exlent possible, the Bank and its subsidiaries use active market data for vaiuing

financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily
determinable market values are valued using maodels.

104




oL

PL0'9LE'6E £88°GE6'G 198'7L6°2F  02S'GES'FOL . 000°ZH0°) Z66'CLL L £8.°782'%1  I5Z'8sg0T
LI8Z) o - 088'G66 %9 . - - - e
2£1'89¢'62 rLLes L'e 816'265'GL  OvR'AER'66 ' 0.G°Z6 £26'805'2 - -
- 102 6% b'e £es'ege'el - 0L 646 (AR A~ £82'282'F1 928'8/0'0l
- ‘BOB'ELY olL¥'es0'yl - - 282'0v2'v - . Le¥'642'%
UoIt ONA O GNA - YOI ONA - UOHIW GNA . UONIIU ONA - UOIIIW GNA UOIII ONA - UL GNA
SHUBUNILILIOD Auriew ajes SIDIOISND sjasse Buipe; syueq a0 siusieanbe
josys -op-plotf -I0J-3/G2jieAR 0] SeouRApE | [eloueUlf -iog-piaty wodp ang yseo
82UBIRG-HO SJUSWSOAUI  SJUSLLISBAUl  pUB SUBOT anfleAlng SJUBWISALY T pueysen
‘j2loueuld jerouetiy jBrouett-
LL¥'8L0'821 EVSeLF'YT  OPP'ZOEY9 PSZLGT'O9)1 074616 9/9'9gL’s 2SL'9.9°LLE 186'€99°P¢
9£2'/80' - - re'ler'es - - - -
G/9'06'vel W\,No.vmm.ow Z61°905'8S  ZL9'BLA'ES ' vPS'ZZL £P5'789'L - Ze9'LL
- cle'ce Zze'bror - 96051 SIG'EYT'E Ze2'929'LL  998'980'vC
- yrLesg'e 9TevIF's - - slg'olg'e - £8v'655'01
Lo GNA oy gNA - Lol ONA - UOIIIIU GNA . UOHIRL GNA - UCHIIW GNA - UOIIIUI NA - Lol ONA
SHUSWNUIIOD 1305 1DoAH 18 si1sLo}SNo sjesse Tdind e syuBq Y0 Ssiusreainba
jesls \posiuOWe Je  SJUBLSIAL Q) SSOUBARE | [BIoUBUY SpaLUSaAY)  Woll ang yseD
aoueeq-10 SJUSUSBALL  [RIOUBUY pue SURDT | BAIBALIS(] feroueL pue ysen
‘ferueu

leyey

atesodion

Bunjueg

USLILISAOE)

L10Z 18quedaq |¢ je sy

ey

gwelodion

Bupueg

WSWIUIRA0D)

2102 Jequadaq Lg 18 sy

RAWETIE =) 1

[BIoUBUY pajepliosuod ay} uo (uswuiedw Jo; acuemole Buipnjoul u.or; SJOSSE |Blouell} 10} 10)05S AQ UCHRAUDIUOD YSI 81} SMays ajae) Buwa)|o) sy |

103098 Aq sishjeuy

(PaNUIUOD} ¥SLI JIpalD

(penunUOD) INFNIDVYNYIN MSIY

Rl
4 4
‘W

810z lequana( L& papua Jeak ay; 1oy Due e se
(panupuos) SINFWALYLS TYIONVNI4 Q3LYAMOSNOD IHL OL SILCN

Jueq 3001S JUIOL [B12JaWWo)) pue [e2160jouyoa | WeusIA




Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.
41.2.

41.2.7.

41.2.8.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk {continued)
Commitments and guarantees

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank and its subsidiaries enter into various

~irrevocable commitments and contingant liabilities, Evon though thoso obligations may not be

recognised on the consclidated statement of financial position, they do contain credit risk and
are, therefore, part of the overall risk of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to a financial guarantee is the maximum amount
the Bank and its subsidiaries would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. The maximum
exposure to credit risk relating to a loan commitment is the full amount of the commitment. In
both cases, the maximum risk exposure is significantly greater than the amount recognised
as a liahility in the consolidated financial statements.

The following table presents the maximum credit risk of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the
commitments and guaranlees:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND million VND million

Letters of credit 7,928,745 9,366,321
Financial guarantees 19,047,561 16,009,693
Undrawn loan commitments 101,042,105 -
128,018,411 - 25,376,014

Analysis of non-performing loans
Non-performing loans comprise of loans of group E rating.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VIND mitlion VND million
Non-performing loans 2,728,417 2,606,199
Non-performing loan ratio - 1.64% 1.58%
Individual impairment loss of
non-performing loans (453,627) (824,273)
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

4,

41.3.

RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank and iis subsidiaries might be unable to meet
their payment obligations when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To
limit this risk, the Bank and its subsidiaries have arranged for diversified funding sources in
addltion to thelr core deposit base, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity In
mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The Bank and its
subsidiaries have developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing
liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of
high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank and its subsidiaries maintain a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets
that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash
flow. The Bank and its subsidiaries also have committed lines of credit that it can access to
meet fiquidity needs. In addition, the Bank and its subsidiaries maintain a compulsory reserve
at the SBV based on deposits from customers (NMofe 22). The most important is to maintain
limits on the ratio of net liguid assets to customer liabilities, to reflect market conditions. Liquid
assets consist of cash, gold; balances with the SBY; debt instruments negotiable by the SBY;
demand deposits in correspondent banks, except for commiiments for specific payment
purpose; zero term deposits in credit institutions and Government provisionary notes.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
a. Maturity profile of the discounted cash flows of financial assets and liabilities

The table below summarices the maturity profile of the discounted cash flows of the Bank and
its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities as at year end. Repayments subjected to notice
are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Bank and its subsidiaries
expect that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date it could be
required lo pay and lhe lable does nol reflecl the expecled cash llows indicaled by its deposit
retention history.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.

41.3.

41.4.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

The table below presents the status of the remaining maturity of the commitments and
liabilities:

Upto1l Fromito3 From 3 to From 1o Qver b
month months 12 months 5 years years Total
VND million VND million VND million VND miliion VND million  VND million

As at 31 December
2018

Letters of credit - - 13,059 7,915,686 - 7,928,745
Financial guarantees 2,167,167 3,364,563 7,060,437 6,336,981 118,413 18,047,561
Undrawn loan

commitments 9,758,320 7,204,892 18,360,286 38,025175 26,693,422 101,042,106

Total commitments

and guarantees 11,925,487 10,569,455 26,433,792 52,277,842 _ 26,811,835 126,018,411

As at 31 December

2017 .
Letters of credit - - 14,718 9,351,603 - 9,366,321
Financial guarantees 3,080,478 2,927,324 5,039,601 3,947,816 114,474 16,009,603

Total commitments

and guarantees 3,980,478 2,927,324 5,054,319 13,299,419 114,474 25,376,014

~ Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices. The Bank and its subsidiaries classify exposures to market risk into either
trading or non—trading portfolios and manage each of those portfolios separately. Non-trading
positions are managed and monitored using other sensitivity analysis,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the falr vatues of financlal iInstruments. The Board of Directors has established limits
on the non-trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Bank and its subsidiaries'
policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure
positions are maintained within the established limits.

The table below analyses the interest rate risk for financial assets and financial liabilities of

the Bank and its subsidiaries presented at the gross carrying amount and classified by the
repricing date or maturity, whichever is earlier.
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Vietham Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41.

41.4.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

Assuming that all other variables unchanged, the fluctuation in interest rates that affect the
pre-tax profit and equity of the Bank and its subsidiaries as follows:

Increase in Effect on Effect on
interest rate Profit before tax Equity
% VND million YD miflion
As at 31 December 2018
UsD 1.50 103,589 82,871
VND 3.00 2,394,467 1,915,574
As at 31 December 2017
ushD 1.50 12,513 -
VND 3.00 143,866 {118,841)

The increase/decrease in basis points used to analyse the sensitivity to interest rates is
assumed based on the conditions that can be observed on the current market.

A 3.00% decrease of VND intersst rate and a 1.50% decrease of USD inleresl rate as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the
above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the vaiue of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates.

The Bank and its subsidiaries are established and incorporated in Vietnam and accounting
currency is Vietham dong, the main transaction currencies of the Bank and its subsidiaries
are Vietnam dong, gold, US dollar, Euro and other foreign currencies. The Bank and its
subsidiaries establish limits on positions by currency. In accordance with the Bank's policy,
positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions
are maintained within established limits.

Classification of assets and liabilities by currency converted into VND of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 and as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

41,

41.4.

41.5.

RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Exchange rate sensitivity

On the assumption that other variances are unchanged, the table below shows the sensitivity
of profit before tax of the Bank and its subsidiaries (due to changes in fair value of assets and
liabilities) to changes occurring at suitable level of US dollar, Euro and gold exchange rate.

Risk due to changes in exchange rate to other foreign currencies of the Bank and its
subsidiaries is not significant.

Leve!l of
increase Effects on Profit before tax
(%) VND miition

As at 31 December 2018

usD 1.00 67,590
EUR 1.00 52
Gold 3.00 388
As at 31 December 2017 = . T e . . o
usD 1.00 7,423
EUR _ 1.00 4,060
Gold 3.00 665

A 1.00% strengthening in the VND against USD, EUR and 3.00% against gold as af 31
December 2018 and as at 31 December 2017 would have had the equal but opposite effect
on the above currencies {o the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant,

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human erior, fraud or external
events, When controls fail to operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Bank and its
these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks.

Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

42,

43.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Bank and its subsidiaries have entered into commercial leases for premises and
equipment. These leases have an average life of between three and five years with no
renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by
entering into these leases (e.g. such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and
further leasing). Future minimum lease payments under non—cancellable operating leases are
as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND million VND million

Within one year 120,019 118,242
After one year but not more than five years 229,575 131,768
More than five years 12,936 -
362,530 250,010

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related party transactions include all transactions undertaken with other entities to which the
Bank and its subsidiaries are related. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. A party is deemed to be a related party to the Bank and its
subsidiaries if:

{a) Directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

» controls, is controlled by, or is under common control by the Bank and its subsidiaries
(this includes parents and subsidiaries);

> has contribution (own from 5% of chartered capital or share equity with voting right)
in the Bank and its subsidiaries that gives it significant influence over the Bank and
its suibsidiaries; or ‘

» has joint control over the Bank and its subsidiaries;

(b) The party is a joint-venture, associate in which the Bank and its subsidiaries are the
- -ventures; investors (own over 11% of chartered capital or share equity with voting fight” T

but not subsidiaries);
(¢} The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank and its subsidiaries;
(d) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or {c); or

(e) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or
for which significant voting power in such the Bank resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (c) or (d).
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

43, SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {continued)

Demand deposits from customers

VND million
Related party Relationship 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
The European Plastic Window {in) 10,670 23,7983
Joint S8tock Company
Masan Group Corporation Joint (iv) 67,984 64,877
Stock Company and a group of
related companies
Members of the Board of (i), (iii) 200,648 172,702
Directors, Supervisors,
Management and other related
individuals
Remuneration of the Board of Directors, Supervisors and Management

VND miflion
Related party Amount

2018 2017

Remuneration of the Board of Directors, B ' .
Supervisors and Management
Remuneration of the Board of Directors and (31,099) (28,903)
Supervisors
Remunaeration of the Board of Management {164,886) {66,611)

(i} Shareholder has its representative in the Board of Directors of the Bank -
(i) Related party has its representative in the Board of Directors of the Bank

(i) Related party has its representative related to members of the Board of Directors, or

Board of Management or Board of Supervisors of the Bank

(iv) Masan Group Corporation Joint Stock Company and a group of related companies of
Masan Group Corporation Joint Stock Company have its representative in the Board of
Directors of the Bank or its representative related to members of the Board of Directors,

or the Board of Management or the Board of Supervisors of the Bank
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

44,

CAPITAL

The Bank and its subsidiaries maintain an actively managed capital base to cover risks
inherent in the business and meet the capital adequacy requirements of the SBV. The
adequacy of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ capital is among other measures and adopted by
the SBV in supervising the Bank.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Bank
and its subsidiaries comply with externally imposed capital requirements and maintain strong
credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Bank and its subsidiaries manage their capital structure and make adjustments to it
according lo changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of their activities. in
order fo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No
changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the prior periods.
However, they are under constant review by the Board of Management.

Regulatory capital

The table below shows the regulatory capital and capital adequacy ratio of the Bank as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017. According to regulations of the SBV, the regulatory
capital and capital adequacy ratio are calculated following the guideline of Circular No.
13/VBHN-NHNN ("regulations on prudential ratios”) and determined based on the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries in accordance with Vietnam
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, regulations
stipulated by the SBV and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VND miflion VND million
Tier 1 Capital 44,498 544 19,228,990
Tier 2 Capital . 4,267,845 . 8,741,372
Total equity capital | : 48,766,389 = - 27,970,362
Risk weighted assets 341,024,380 220,662,985
Tier 1 capital adeguacy ratio 13.05% 8.71%
Total capital adequacy ratio 14.30% 12.68%
Minimum adequacy for total capital ratio
required by regulations on prudential ratios - 9.00% 9.00%
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

485,

46.

EXCHANGE RATE OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES AS AT END OF THE YEAR

ushD
EUR
Gold

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

VND VIND
23,185 22,425
26,529 27,248

3,641,000 3,648,000

Certain corresponding figures presented in prior year's consolidated financial statements
have been reclassifled to conform to the current year's presentation:

2017
{as previously 2017
reported) Reclassification freclassified)
Notes VND million VIND rmillion VND million
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Interest and similar income (i) 17,306,079 (318,607) 16,987,472
Net trading income (i) 702,709 300,473 1,003,182
Other operating income (i) 2,720,193 18,134 2,738,327
Fee and commission expenses (i) {707,783) 151,001 {556,782)
Credit loss expense on {ii)
financial assets {2,798,743) 57,538 (2,741,205)
Other operating expenses (ii) (1,435,044) {208,539) (1,643,583)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Credil loss expense on
financtal assets iii) 2,798,743 (57,5638) 2,741,205
Change in other liabilities i) 552,725 57,538 610,263
Change in other assets {iv) (2,046,659) (355,192) {2,401,851)
Proceed from-liquidation ofthe -~ - o e e e e LR
subsidiary and other long-term
investments {iv) - 355,192 355,192

() Reclassify “Interest and similar income” to “Net trading income” and “Other operating

income”,

(i) Recfassify “Fee and commission expenses” to “Other operating expenses” and reclassify
“Other oporating expenses” to “Credit loss expense on financial assets”.

(i) Reclassify “Credit loss expense on financial assets” to “Change in other liabilities™.

(iv) Reclassify “Change in other assets” to “Froceed from liquidation of the subsidiary and

other long-term investments”.
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Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018

47, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

On 12 March 2018, the Bank divested its entire capital in Techcom Finance Limited One
Member Company.

On 4 June 2018, the Bank's shares were officially listed on Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

On 30 May 2018, Techcom Securltles Company Limited successtully transformed Its legal
form from a limited company to a joint stock company under Establishment and Operating
License No. 125/GP-UBCK issued by the State Security Commission of Vietnam dated 30
May 2018. The Company's new name has been changed to Techcom Securities Joint Stock
Company.

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 30 January 2019, Techcom Capital Managemeni Company Limited successfully
fransformed its legal form from a limited company to a joint stock company under
Establishment and Operating Licence No. 57/GP-UBCK issued by the State Security
Commission of Vietnam dated 30 January 2019, replacing Establishment and QOperating
Licence No. 40/UBCK-GP issued by the State Security Commission of Vietnam on 21 October
2008. There is no difference in term of permitted operating activities between these two official
documents. Accordingly, the Company’s name is changed to Techcom Capital Management
Joint Stock Company.

There has not been any other matter or circumstance that has arisen since the reporting date
that has affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Bank and its subsidiaries, the
results of those operations or the siate of affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries in subseguent

periods.
Prepared by: Approved by: SApprovely.
GAN HAN ».\
P *{ THUONG MBI CO PHA
KY T
Ms. Bui Thi Khanh Van Ms. Thai Ha Linh PFREEyen Le Quoc Anh
Chief Accountant Director of Accounting, Chief Executive Officer

Financial Policy and Tax,
Finance and Planning Division

15 -03- 2019

Hanoi, Vietnam
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